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VISION .

To maximize market share by producing and marketing highest quality vehicles in

Pakistarn,

MISSION

As a customer orented Company, provide highest level of customer

satisfaction.

+ To accelerate performance in all operating areas, ensuring growth of the

Company and increasing return to the stakeholders,

« Tocreate a conducive working environment leading to enhanced productivity,

job satisfaction and personal development of the employees,

» To contribute to social welfare by adopting environment friendly practices

and processes for the well being of society.



COMPANY PROFILE

Board of Directors

Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak

Lt.Gen. (Retd.y Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak

M. Mushtag Ahmed Khan (FCA)
Ch. Sher Muharmmad

Mr, lamil &, Shah

Syed Haroon Rashid

Mr. Mohammad Zia

Mr, Larbi Hbil

Company Secretary
Mir. Aglel Amjad Ghani

Registersd Office
Ghandhara House
108/2, Clifton, Karachi

Barhers of the Company

National Bank of Pakistan Limited
The Bank of Khyber

Faysal Bank Umited

Soneri Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

United Bank Limited

Allied Bank Limited

The Bank of Tokyo — Mitsubishi, Ltd,

NIE Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited
Askari Commercial Bank Limited

Auditors

M5 Hameed Chaudhei & Co.
Chartered Accountants
5" Flaor, Karachi Chambers
Hasrat Mohani Road
Karachi

Legal & Tax Advisors

Shaukat Law Assodates
217-218, Central Hotel Annexe
Abdullah Haroon Road

Karachi

Chalrman
President

Chief Executive Officer
i

Chief Financial Ofticer
M. Muhammad 5aleem Balg

Factory

Tiuck / Car Plants
Port Bin Qiasim, Karachi

Audit Committes

hr- Mohammad Ta

Lt.Gen. [R) AN Xufi Khan K hattak
Ch. S$her Muhammad

M Jamil A, Shah

Human Respurce & Remeneration
Committes

Lt.Gen, (R} AN Eull Khan Ehattak
Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak
Che Sher Muhammad

i Muhammad 2a

bi, Jamil & Shak

Mz, Muniff Ziauddin & Ca
Chartered Accountants
Business Executive Cenitre
F/17/3, Block 8, Clifton
Karachi

Share Registrars

T.-H.K Associates (PvL] Lid,

Ground Floor, State Ufe Bldg. No.3

Dx. Zia uddin Ahmed Road
Karachi

Chairman
Member
Blernber
Mtember

Chairman






NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby given that 33™ Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Ghandhara Missan Limited
will be held on Thursday, 22°° October 2015 at 10:00 AM., at Ghandhara House 108/2, Clifton, Karachi, 1o
transact the following business:

Crdinary Business;

Ta confirm the minutes of the 327 Annual General Meeting held on 28™ October, Eﬂﬁ:'

To recelve, consider and approve the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 30™ June,
2015 together with Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports therean.

To consider and approve the payment of final Cash Dividend. The Board of Directors has recommended
payment of final Cash Dividend of Rs.4.50/- per share (45%) for the yearended 30 June, 2015

To appoint Auditors for the year ending 30 lung, 2016 and fix their remuneration. The retiring
Auditors, M/fs. Hameed Chaudhri & Co,, Chartered Accountants and /s, Muniff Ziauddin & Co.,
Chartered Accountants being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

Special Business:

Additional investment in Ghandhara DF (Pvi.) Limited a wholly owned subsidiary company of Ghandhara
Nissan Lid.:

in arder to enable Ghandhara OF (Pvt.) Limited to successfully execute its business plan, it is proposed to
extend advance upto Rs 300 miilion subject to regulatory approvals,

The Board of Directors, in their meeting held on 16™ Septamber, 2015 have given their consent to seek
approval of the shareholders U/5-208 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 for this propose, and to pass the
following special resclution:-

“Rescived that cash acvance of Rs. 300 million upto three years be granted to Ghandhara DF (Pvt.] Limited (GDFPL)
for its Working Capital requirements, at 2 markup of 5 months KIBOR + 3%."

Further resolved that the Board of Directors be and s hereby authorized ta review the said facility every
year during the sald three years ”

A statement Under Section 160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 pertaining to the Special
Business stated above i5 annexed to this Notice of the meeting.

To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair,

By Order of the Board
AQIEL AMJAD GHANI

Karachi: 29" september, 2015 {COMPANY SECRETARY)



NOTES:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 197 October, 2015 to 26™ Ociober, 2015
{both days inclushe).

A member entitled to atteénd and vote 3t the Annual General Meeting &5 entitied to cast his/her vote by prowy.
Proxies must be deposited 4t the Company's Registered Office at Ghandhara House, 1049/2, Cifton, Karachi not
iater than 48 hours before the time for holding the mesting.

individual beneficial owners of COC entitied to attend and vote at this meetng must belag their participant 1D
and accountfsub-account nurmbers alang with ariginal CNIC o passport to werdy his/her identity. In case of
Cofporate entity, resalution of the Board of Directors/Power of Atterney with specimen signature of the
naminess shall be produced {unless submitted earlier] at the time of meeting.

For appointing proxies, the Individual beneficial owners of CDC shall submit the peoxy form as per above
requirement alongwith participant 10 and account | sub-account number together with attested copy of their
EMIC ar passport, The prowy form shall be witnessed by two witnesses with their names, addresses and CNIC
nirbers. The prowy shall produce his/her original CNIC or passport at the time of meeting. In case of Corporate
entity, resolution of the Board of Directors/Power of Atterney with specimen signature of the proxy shall be
produced at the tine of meeting (unless submitted earlier] alongwith the proxy faem.

fembers should guote their Folio Mumber in all correspandence and at the tme of attending the Meeting.

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan [SECP) vide notificatians dated August 18, 2011 and July 05,
2012 made it mandatory that dividend warrants should bear CNIC number of the registered members,
therefore, members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid Computerized National ldentity
Cards to the Company are requested 1o send the same at the earbiest to enable the Company to comply with
relevant laws, Failure to provide the same would constrain the Company to withhold dispatch of dividend
warrants.

As directed: by SECP vide Circular Mo 18 of 2012 dated August 18, 2012, we have already given opgortunity 10
sharehalders to autharize the Company to directly credit in his/their bank account with cash dividend, if amy,
declared by the Company in future, If you still wish that the cash dovidend, if declared by the Company be
directly credited into your bank account, Instead of Issuing a dividend warrant, please provide the relevant
details.

Shareholders are informed that Income Tax Ordinance, as amended by Finance Act, 2015, has prescribed
17.5% withholding tax on dividend payment to ron flers while filers of income tax returns will be liable 1o
withholding tax @12.5%. Shareholders are advised to provide their NTN to Share Registrars of the Company
for availing the benafit of withholding tax rate applicable to filers.

To enable to make tax dedisction on the amount of cash dividend @12.5% instead of 17.5% all the members
whose names are not entered in the active tax payers list [ATL) provided on the website of Federal Board of
Revenue (FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their nares are entered into
ATL by October 15, 2015 otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @17.5% instead of 12.5%

10, Members are requested to notify any change in their address, immediately to our Share Registrar's Office —

M5, THE Associates (Pvt.) Lid, Ground Flogr, State Life Bidg. No.3, Or. Zisuddin Ahmed Road, Karachi.

Statement U/5-160{1}{b) of the Companies Drdinance, 1384 Investment in Ghandhars DF [Pve) Limited

Ghandhara Nissan Limited has invested In a 100% owned subsidiary by the name of Ghandhara DF [Pvt.) Limited
herein after referred to as GOFPL.

The principal activity of GDFPL is the assembly/progressive manufacture of Dongfeng heavy and light duty
commercial vehicles in Pakistan from the CKD Kits imported from Dongfeng Commercial Vehicle Company and
Dongfeng Automabile Company Limited.



In order to enable GOFPL to carry cut sustainable operations it 15 proposed to extend advance upto Rs 300
million charging Interest @KIBOR+3%,

The Board s therefore pleased to share the followmng information with its members:-

& The purpose of investmant 5 to enable GOFPL to impart CKD kits and sell the vehicles in the
commercial market that are assembled under contract Assembly agreament with GNL This will also
enable GOFPL ta carry on business smoothiy. The investment will be for 3 period of three years, Profit
derived from the operations of GDFPL will accroe to GML which may be received in the form of

Dividend

A

The informarion requined under 5.8.0. 27012012 is provided below;

Information Required

undertaking alongwith criteria based on
which the associated relationship b established

| Amount of loans or advances

Ghandhara OF (Private] Limited, & 100% owned subsidiary of
Ghandhara Nissan Limited

Advance upto fis 300 Miion

Purpose of lcans and advances and benefits
likely to acorue to the investing company and
its members from such loans or advances.

To supplement the working capltal regurenents of GDFPL

The irvesting Company being the holding company of GDFPL,
willl derive benefit in the form of dividend, which will eventually |
benefit ali stakeholders of GNL

W

| in case any loan has already been granted to
the asociated company of  associated
undertaking, the complete details thereof

Mot applicable

<

Financial position, including main tems of
balance sheet and profit and loss account of
the associated company or  associated
undertaking on the basis of its latest inancial

Piease refer Annexure 1

Aversge borrowing cost of the investing
company of in case of absence of borrowing
the Karachi imter Bank OMered Rate for the
relevant period

6 KIBOR + 2.5%

[ Rate of interest, mark up, proft, fees of
commissian, ete. to be charged

The advance will carry profit @ 6 M KIBOR » 3%

wiil

Source of funds from where loans or
advances will be gven

The armount will be advanced to GOFPL from GNL's profits

‘Where lpans or advances are being granted

| using borrowed funds:

a. lustificarion for granting loan or
wthvance out of borrowed funds

b Detail of guarantees [ sssets pledged
for obtaining swch funds, if any

¢ Repayment schedules af borrowing
of the mwesting company

Mot applicable

Particulars of collateral security to be
obtained against loan to the borrowing
company of underlaking, if ary

Mot applicable




al

[ If the loans or advanca carry conversan |

Teature, le. it s comvertble 1o securities, this

fact dlong with carnplete detail ncluding |
conversion tormula, cincumstances in which |
the conwersion may take place and the Hme |

| when the conversion maybe exercisable

Mot ipdirahie

| Repayment schedute and terms of Soans of |

advances to be given to the investes
oMy

Thie advancs will be for 3 paniod of thres years frmth!ﬂatad |
first such payment by GRL.

GOFPL can repay the advance or any part thereol,

Warkup shall be paid by GOFPL to GHL g@rterdy n arcears, |

kil

Sallent features of all agreernents entered of |
1o be entered with its assaciated company ar |
associated undertaking with regards fo |
proposed irvesirnent

& GNL shall advance to GOFPL any amount as reguested by |
GOFPLto meet its working capital requirements and to |
satisly bothits obligations and operational expenses; | ]
provided that the eutsfanding principal amount at any
point in tme shad not exscesd Rs 300 Millian,

b GDFPL shall pay the mark-up due to GML guarterly in
arrears.

|Direct or indwect interest of directors,
Sponsors, majority shareholders and their
refatives, if any, In the associated compary or
assoclated undertaking or the transaction |
under congideration

Any other importang ﬂet,a Muﬂ;&; Yor the
membars to understand the transaction

GML, being the spansor of GOFRL, will receive dividend, There is |

| no direct nterest of the Directors of GHL in GOFPL, eicept that |

they are peminated by GNL

| GDFPL, being 3 whally cwned subsidiary of GNL. has commenced |

{20 operations of Dongleng vehides during the fnancial year |
2014-15

The proposed machanism will not ondy augrment the commercial
operations of GOFPL but will also provide synergy 1o the |
stakeholders.

In case of irvestrment in @ project of an
associated company or asioclated undentaiing
that has not commenced operations, in
asddition to the mtormaton refemed 10 above,
the following further informathon is required,
namedy:

& A desripsion of the project and i
hISTory Sinte oond epludization
ftarting date and expected date of
compdetian
Tieng by which juch pragect shall became
cammercially opefstional
Expected returh on toted  capitad
ermpiayed in the project
Funds nvested o ta be invested By the
pramaters. distinguishing between cah

b

7]

and nan-cash amounts.

Mot apobcable

ARFErY ]

FiMAMIIAL BrETTHAN - L3,
EFTRALTS FROA ALIGHITED FINANIIAL YTATE MINTY FTIR THE YE&N
MLy PLINE- O, 2025

Total Assets = R 368 Rl :
| Total Liabifines | Rs 255 Mdlion |
Equity | As 110 WElsan |
Revanus = N1 Ra 155 Milian .
Gross Praft My :'H.un |
g Praft Rs 15 Wllian
Mat Pt After Lax R 10 Millian




CHAIRMAN'’S REVIEW

| arm grateful ta Almighty Allah for the very encouraging resuits of your company flos the year ended 307 june, 2015,

¥owr Company has shown ALHAMDULILAH remarkabie performance and has attained & after tax profit of Rs, 50887

millian & against sfver tax profit of As.173.93 million st year. e

Coampany’s Performance

The Company sold 856 units of UD trucks as compared to 380 units fast year. Moreovar 87 units of Dongfeng vehicles were
sold in commarcial market which were imported in CBU condition as compared to 52 units lest year. During the year under
review the contract assembly of 1,527 units was underiaken 85 agsinst 1,628 wnits lnst year,

This sagnificant improvement compared with Last year has resulted in imprassive finsncil reots of the Company. Cherall
market conditions remained competitive and despite the challenges, our performance has been encouraging.

Future Dutiook

Keeping in viaw the entouraging response from the market of Dongfeng Commercial Vehices Limited [DFCY), we foréses
Imgdovements in product quality, Dangheng vehicles therefore will yield substantial revenues 1o your company in days
ahead.

| #m pledsed to state that In addition to. normal Business, we réceived a firm order for the sale of UD Trucks. This will have
a positive impact on the profitability of the comgpany.

The vear wnder review, has been 3 year of Sgnificant improvement in the perfasmance of th Company. We look forward
o contined impreviment in 2016 and beyend. The management of your Company continues to make dedicated efforts
for further improving its cperational performance.

Acknowicdgement

Our people are the key drivers behing the sustalned growth of GHL. On behalf of the Baard of directors and an my own
Ibehalf, | ackrowledge the contribution of each and every employes of the Company,

We would also like to express our thanks to Nissan Motor Co. lapan, UD Trucks Corporation Jagan [Formerly Nissan Dhesed
Motor Co. Lmited Japan), Dorgfeng Commercial Vehicle Company, Dongfeng Automobile Company Limited, the
Management of Sigrma Mators (Pvt.) Lid, Ghandhara Industries Lid, Shareholders, Dealers, Customens and Yendars for
thetir co-operation and the trust shown In owr products,

Fwowl also like to record our gratitede 10 sur bankers for thelr covgeration and understanding shown 19 4 and we
ok forward to mutual beneficlal business relationshigy

Raza Kull Khan Khattak
Chaireran Board of Dirgetor;
Karachi Dated: 16™ Seplember, 2015



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present their Report together with the Audited Accounts and

Audizors’ Report thereon for the year ended 30" Jupe 2015.
Financial Results -

The finaricial results for the year ended 30" Jume 2015 are summarized below.

2015 2014
{Rupees in thousands)
Profit before taxation 787,217 269,685
Taxation -
Current (141,103) | | {44,384}
Prior year ) e ‘ &4
Deferred {137,307) i50.845)
(278,410} {35,765}
Profit after taxation 508,857 173,930
Other comprehensive Income _ (A 12436}
Total comprehensive Income 507 466 171,454
Accumulated profit
Brought forward 338375 | [ 141818
Incremental depreciation 32,250 20.062
Final Dividend (90,005} -
276,620 162,881
Accumulated profit '
Carried forward 784,086 134375
Earnings Per Share 11.31 386

The Board of Directors have recommended 45% final Cash Dividend for the year ended 30 June 2015 at
As.4.50¢- per share and conserved the remaining resources for up-gradation and renovation of the Plant and to
meet the requirement of future business plan under consideration.

Operatng Results

The company earned a profit after tax of Rs.S0B.B67 million, 4% against a profit after tax of Rs.273.93 million in
cofrespondng year,

This was possible due to increase in sabes volume of UD vehicles, sales of Dongfeng vehicles in CBU condition
and favorable exchange rate movement.



Chairman's Review

The Review included in the Annual Repart desls intes-alia with the performance of the Company for the year
ended 30" June 2015 and its future outlook. The Directors of the Company endorse the contents of this Review.

Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance

As required under the code of corporate governance, the Directors are pheased to confirm that:
it
* The financial statements, prepared by the management of the company, present its state of affairs fairly,

the result of its operations, cash llows and changes in egquity;
*  Proper books of account of the company have been malntained;

= Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financal statements
ang accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent fudgment;

& International Financial Reporting Standards, 2% applicable in Pakistan, have been followed In preparation
of financial statements and any departures therefrom have been adeguately disclosed and explained;

«  The system of the internal control is scund in design and has been effectively implemented and

monitared;
®  There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ahility to continue as a going concern;
» Key operating and financial data of last six years has been included in the Annual Report;

+ Informanon about taxes and levies is given in the respective notes to the Financlal Statements;

¢ Subsidlary Company:- During the year Company has made investment of Rs.40 million in the equity of
Ghandhara DF Pyt Ltd (GDFPL),

* The value of invesiments made by the staff retirement funds as per their respective audited accounts
are given below:

Value of investment Year ended
Provident Fund Rs-58.921 million June 30, 2014

*  Notrading in the shares of the Company was carried out by the Directors, CFO, Company Secretary, thelr
spouses and minor children,



Mestings of Board
During the year 2014-15, five Board meetings were held. Attendance by each Director 15 as follows:

.o

Name of Dicector Ko, of Meetings Attenced

Mir. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak

Lt.Gen {Retd. | Al Kull Khan Khattak
Mr. Ahmed Kull Khan Khattak

Mr. Jamil A. Shah

Mr. Mushtag Ahmed Khan (FCA}
Chaudhry Sher Muhamrmad

Mr. Muhammad 2ia

Syed Haroon Rashid

M. Larbi Hiil

© W Wk
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Leave of absence was granted to the Directors whe could not attend the Board Meetings,

MAr, Larbi Hbil could not attend the Baard meetings because of security reasons. Mr. Mushtag Ahmed Khan could
not attend on medical grounds.

Meetings of Audit Committes
During the year 2014-15, four Audit Committes meetings were held. Atendance by each member is as follows:

5.No. Name of Director No..of Meetings Artended

i Lt.Gen (Retd. ) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
2 Chaudhry Sher Muharmmad

3, bir. Jamil A Shah

4. Mr. Mubammad Zia

L

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could nat attend the Board Audit Committes Meetings.

Human Resource and Remuneration Committes

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee of the Company has been meeting as per Corporate
Governance Policy. The existing company policies related to Human Resource have been provided to the
members,

Performance Evaleation

The Board of Directors has performed evaluation of the directors.

Holding Company
Bibojes Services [Pvt.| Limited with 62.32% shares iz the holding Company of Ghandhara Nissan Limited.



Subseguent Events
Mo materlal changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have taken place between
the end of the financial year and the date of the report.

Pattern of Shareholding
The pattern of sharehobding as on 30™ june 2015 of the company is included in the Annual Hegm‘t

Auditors
The present Auditors M/s Hameed Chaudhri & Co. Chartersd Atcountants and M/s. Munif Hauddin & Ce.
Chartered Accountants, retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for reappeintment, The Board of Directors

recommends their appointmeant.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak
Chigl Executive

Karachi: 16" September, 20115




i

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Ghandhara Nissan Limited as at June 30,
2015 and the related profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statament of changes in
equity iogaether with the notes forming part therecf, for the year then ended and we state that
we have obtained all the information and axplanations which, to the best of our knowladge and
betel, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

it is the responsibility of the Company's managemant lo establish and maintain a system of
internal control, and prepare and present the above said statements in-gbnformity with the
approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1884, Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these siatements based on our audit.

We conduct our audt in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan.
These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the above said statements are free of any material misstalement. An audit
includes examining, on a tesl basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuras in the
above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and
significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of
the above said statements. We believe thal our audit prevides a reasonable basis for our
opinion and. after due verification, we report that:

(@) in cur opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companis Ordinance, 1984,

(b} in owur opinion:

{i} the balance sheel and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1884, and ara in
agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with accounting
policies consistently apphied,

(i} the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's
business; and

(iii} the business conducted. investments made and the sxpanditure ncurred during the
year were in accordance with the objects of the Company;

(2} in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the balance sheet, profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of
changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved
accounting standards as apphicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and
fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2015 and of the profil, its
cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

(d} in our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (xXVill
of 1980), was deducted by the Company and deposited in Central Zakat Fund established
under section 7 of that Ordinance.

HAMEED CHALDHRI & CO., MUNIFF 2AUDDIN & CO.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Muharmmad Ali Muhammad Main Khan

Karachi: 16" September, 2015 Karachi: 16" September, 2015




BALANCE SHEET
AS AT JUNE 30, 2015

2015 2014
ASSETS HNote ==e Rupees in 000 -
Mon current assets
Proparty. plant and equpmeant 5 1,749,288 1,764,038
Intangible assets ] . 88 118
Long term imvestments T 192,630 152,630
Long term loans B 6,477 4, 854
Lang term deposits -] 18,833 ' 8,031
1,865,113 1,929,681
Current nssets
Stores, spares and loose lools 10 50,174 44,055
Stock-in-trade 11 m 692,474
Trade debis 12 345,727 355,583
Loans and advances 13 40,212 25,541
Deposits and prepayments 14 39,004 15,721
Cther recelvables 15 30,749 49,102
Short termm imvastment 18 30,082 38, 108
Taxation - mat 117,341 O6.0F0
Bank balances 17 328,915 148,618
1,806,151 1,806,273
Total assets 3,571,264 3,434,054
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and resarves
Share capital 18 450,025 450,025
Share premium 40,000 40,000
Unappropriated profit 784,086 334 375
Total aquity 1,274,111 B24.400
Surplus on revaluation of flixed assets 19 1,048,285 1,054,188
Liabilities
Naon current liabilities
Liabiliies against assels subject o finance lease 20
Long term deposits 21
Daferred liabilites 2
Defarred tasation 23
Current liabillities
Trade and cther payables 24
Accruad mark-up 25
Short term finances 28 :
Running finances under mark-up arangements 27 118,802 54,380
Current portion of liabilities sgainst assels
subject to finance lsase 20 11,387 3.856
813,314 1,278,815
Total liabilities 1,248,858 1556368
Contingencies and commitrmants 2B
Total equity and |labilities 3,571,264 3,434,854

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Ahmed Kull Khan Khattak Ch. Sher Muhammad
Chief Executive Dérector



PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Dastribution cost
Administrative expenses
Other income

Other expenses
Profit from operations
Finanee cost

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Loss on re-measurement of staff retdrement

benefit obligation
Impact of deferred tax

Total comprehensive income

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

MNote

- - B

1

2015 2014

=== Rupees in '000 ----
5,445,392 1,619,910
(4312378 (214882
113,06 471,089
(56,435) {18,318)
(188,995) {124,565}
26,335 12,695
(58,348) {19,988
873,571 319,913
(85,294) {50,218)
787,277 268,655
(278,410) {95,765)
508,867 173,930
(2,081) (3,636)
660 1,200
(1.401) (2,436)
507,866 171,484

|
1131 386

The annexed notes from 1to 47 form an integral part of these financal statements.

Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak
Chief Executive

Ch, Sher Muhammad
Director




EASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit bafore taxation 269,685
Adjustments for non-cash charges and ather itens:
[Oepreciation and amortisation 54,580
Interest income [2.183)
Finance cost 40,235
Gain on disposal of property, plant and egulpment [558)
Exchange loss 5733
Provition for gratuity and compensated absences 10482
Amaortization of gain on sale and lease back
of fined assets .
Operating profit befare working capital changes 3Tr.9T4
(Increase] / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spares and loose toois {11,787}
Stock-in-trade {357, 004)
Trade debts (50, 400)
Loars and advances (8.327)
Deposit and prapayments {1, 0a8)
Ovher recelvables (233, 737)
[532,293)
{Decrease) / Increase in trade and other payables 330,114
Cash generated lram operations 165,795
Gratuity and compensated absences paid (B,079)
Long term loans - net 12,5641
Long term deposits - net +
Finance cost paid : (48, 533)
Taxes pald 7a) 162, 360)
Net cash generated from operating activities 7 12,882
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital ex perditure (T.859)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1433
Interest income received 1,559
Inwestment made in a subsidiary (59,995}
Shart term investment - net (38, 105)
Long term deposits - net {1322}
Mt cash used in investing activities (104, 243)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease finances - net {1,779}
Short term finances - net 114,268
Runring finances - net [125,005)
Dividend pald .
Net cash (used in) / generated from Hnancing activities 187,451
Net increase in cash and cash equlvalents O, 050
Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year 52 53R
iag.5138

Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year
The annexed notes frem 1 to 47 farm an integral part of these financial statements.

Ahmed Kull Khan Ehattak Ch. Sher Muhammad
Chief Executive Director




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Balance as at July 1, 2013

Total comprehensive income for
the year ended June 30, 2014

Prafit for the year
Other comprehensive loss

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of fixed
-assets on account of incremental depreciation
-netof deferred taxation

Balance as at June 30, 2014

Transaction with owners,
recognised directly in equity

Final dividend for the year ended June 30,
2014 at the rate of Rs.2.00 per share

Total comprehensive income for
the year ended June 30, 2005

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets on agcount of incremental depreciation
- net of deferred taxation

Unappro-
shml H':E priated Total
capita premium profit

e RpEES iN 000 < ermemere e e
450,025 40,000 142 319 632,844
173.530 173,530
£ {2,436 (2,435}
- 171454 171,454
= . 20,062 20,062
450,025 40,000 334,375 £24.400
* {50,005) (90,005)
- - 508,867 508,867
= 5 (1.201) (1.401)
- 507,466 507,466
- - 32,250 32,250
450,025 40,000 784,026 1,274,111

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Ahmed Kull Khan Khattak
Chief Executive

Ch. Sher Muhammad

Director




MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

1

.1

2

.3
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(a)

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Ghandhara Nissan Limited (the Company] was incorporated on August 8, 1981 in Pakistan as a
private limited company and subsequently converted into 3 public limited company an May 24,
1982, The registered office of the Company is situated ar Ghandhara Howse, 109/2 Clifton,
Karachl. Its manufacturing facllities are located at Port Qasim, Karachi. The Cnmparr,r'i shares are
listed on Karachi and Islamabad Stock Exchanges,

The principal business of the Company is assembly [ progressive manufaciuring of Nissan
passenger Cars, UD Trucks and Buses, import and marketing of Nissan vehicles, import and sale
of DongFeng Complete Built-up Trucks and assembly of other vehides under contract
agreement.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements hawve been prepired in accordance with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) lssued by the International Accounting
Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in case requirements differ, the
provisions of and directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail,

Functional and presentation currency

These Anancal statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the functional currency of
the Company and figures are rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless otherwise
specified.

Changes in accounting standards and interpretations

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that
are effective

There are new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the
accounting pernods beginning on July 1, 2014 but are considered not to be relevant or donot
have any significant effect on the financial statements and are therefore not detalled in these
financial statements.

Standards, Interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

The following are the new standards, amendments to existing approved accounting stindards
and new interpretations that will be effective for the periods beginning July 1, 2015:

IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurerment’, (effective for annual periods beginning on or after lanuary 1,
2015) aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of
fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure reguirements for use
across IFRSs, The requirements do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide



(b)

{c)
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guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other
standards within IFRSs. The Company is yet to assess the full impact of the standard, however,
Initial indication is that it s unlikely that standard will have any significant impact on the
Company's financial statements,

Amendments to IAS 38, 'Intangible Assets’ and IAS 16, 'Property, Plant and Equipment’ [effective
for annual periods beginning an or after January 1, 2016). This amendment clarifies that the use
of revenue-based methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset is notsappropnate becayse
revenue generated by an activity that Includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors
other than the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the asser. This has also
clarified that revenue Is generally presumed to be an inappropriate basis for measuring the
consurnption of the economic benefits embodied in an intangible asset. The presumption may
only be rebutted in certsin limited dreumstances. These are where the intangible asset is
expressed as a measure of revenue; or where it can be demaonstrated that revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly correlated. These
amendments do not have any impact on the Company's finandal statements,

Annual improvements 2004 applicable tor annual periods beginning on or atter January 1, 2016,
These amendments include changes from the 2012-2014 cycle of annual Improvements project
that affect four standards: IFRS 5, 'Non Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations', IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments; Disclosures’, 145 19 'Employee Benefits’, and 1AS 34,
‘Interim Financial Reporting’. These amendments do not have any impact on the Company's
financial statements.

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the published
stangards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therafore,
have not been presented here,

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the histarical cost convention, except for
certain dasses of property, plant and equipment which have been included at revalued amounts
and certain staff retirement benefit which has been recognised at present value as determined
by the Actuary.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires management to make |udgments, estimates and assumptons that affect the
application of accounting poficies and the reported amounts of assets, liabllities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate Is revised and in any
future pericds affected.

The areas where varicus assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial
statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as
fiollows:
(i) Estimate of useful lives and residual values of property, plant & equipment and intangible
assets (notes 4.1and 4.2)
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(i} Stock-in-trade (note-4.5)

(ki) Provision for staff benefits {note-4. 10)

(iv) Provision for warranty {note 4,12}

(v} Provision for taxation (note 4.14)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied In the preparation of these financial stafbments are set
out below, These polices have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets

Owned assets

Operating fised assets except for freehold land, building on freehold land and plant &
machinery are stated at cost less accumulated deprecizion and impairment loss, if any.
Freehold land is stated at revalued amount and building on freehold land and plant & machinery
are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation. Cost indudes expenditure thatis
direetly attributable to the acquisition of the asset,

Subsequent cost

Subsequent cost are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it i probable that future economic benefits asscclated with the item
will flow to the entity and its cost can be reliably measured. Cost incurred to replace a
component of an item of operating fixed assetsis capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired
from use. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on all items of operating fixed assets other than freehold land is charged to profit
and loss account applying the reducing balance method st the rates stated In note 5.1
Depreciation on additions to operating fixed assets is charged from the manth in which an asset
is acquired or capitalised while no depreciation is charged for the manth in which the assetis
disposed-off.

The depreciation method and useful lives of items of operating fixed assets are reviewed
periodically and aitered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change
Is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate by changing depreciation charge for the
current and future pericds.

Disposal

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of fixed assets are determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amounts of assets and are included in the profit and
loss account,

Revaluation of assets

Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets
does not differ materially from the fair value. Amy surplus on revaluation of fixed assets Is
credited to the surplus on revaluation of fixed assets account,
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Leased assets

Fined assets acquired by way of finance lease are stated at an amount equal to the lower of its
fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease lass
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

impairment
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there Is any indication that operating

fixed assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recovegable amount. Where
carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their
recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is taken to profit and |oss account except
for impairment lass on revalued assets, which is adjusted against related revaluation surplus to
the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on revaluation of that asset.
Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any. All expenditure
connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried
under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are
avallable for use.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment lass, if any,

Cost associated with developing ar maintaining computer saftware programs are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Casts that are directly associated with (dentifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Company and will probably generate etonomic benefits exceeding
costs beyond one year, are recognised a5 intangible assets, Direct costs include staff cost, costs
of the software development team and an sppropriate portian of relevant overheads,

Subsequent expenditure

Expenditure which enhance or extend the perfermance of computer software programs beyond
their original specifications are recognised as capital improvement and added to the original cost
of the software.

Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised using the reducing balance mathod at the rate stated in fote &
investments

Investments in Subsidiary and Associated Company

Investments in Subsidiary and Associated Company are carried at cost less impairment, it any,
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense. At each reporting date, the Company reviews
the carrying amounts of investments and fts recaverability to determine whether there is an
indication that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. If any such |ndication exists,
the carrying amount of the investments is adjusted to the extent of impairment loss which is
recognised as an expense in profit and less sccount.
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4.5

Held to maturity investments are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity with a positive intention and ability to held to maturity. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or managemsnt intends to
dispose-off it within 12 months of the end of the reparting date,

Subsequent to initial recognition held to maturity investments are carried at amortised cost
wsing the effective interest method, Interest on held to maturity investments [saloulated using
the effective interest method and is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Available for sale

Investments which are intended to be held for an undefined perlod of time but may be soldin
response to the need for Hguidity or changes in interest rates are classified as avallable for sale.

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, these are re-maeasured at tair value, with any résultant
gain or |oss belng recognised in other comprehensive income. Gains or losses on available for
sale investments are recognised in other comprehensive income until the investments are soid
or disposed off, or until the investments are determined to be impaired, at that tme cumulative
gain or loss previously reported in other comprehensive income Is Induded In current period’s
profit and loss account,

Stores, spares and loase tools

Stores, spanes and loose tools are stated at the.cost which is based on weighted average cost less
provisien for obsolescence, if any. Items in transit are stated at cost comprising of invoice valus
plus other charges thereon accumulated upto the reporting date.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at lower of cost and riet realisable value, The cost of various classes of stock-in-
trade is determined as follows:

Stock category Valuation method
Complete Knock Down Kits Specific cost identification
Complete Built-up Linits Specific cost identification
Local raw materials At cost on weighted average basis,
Waork-in-process and finished goods At eost which comprises of raw materials,

import incidentals, direct labour and
appropriate portion of manufacturing
overheads.

Stock-In-transit At invoice price plus all charges paid
thereon upto the reporting date,

Met realisable value signifies the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business less
costs necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale.
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4.7

4.9

4.10

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts are initially recognised at original inwoice amount which is the fair value of
consideration to be received In future and subsequently carried at cost less provision for
doubtful debts, if any. Carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are assessed at each
reporting date and a provision is made for doubtful receivables when collection of the amount is
na longer probable, Debts considered irrecoverable are written-off,

Loans and receivables &

Loans and recelvables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are included In current assets, except for
maturities outstanding for more than 12 months a3 at the reporting date, in which case_they are
classified as non-current assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow
statement, ¢ash and cash equivalents include deposits held at call with banks and other short
term highly liguid investments with original maturities of three manths or less.

Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings

Mark-up bearing loans and berrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance charges
are accounted for on accrual basis.

Staff benefits

4.10.1 Defined benefit plan

4.10.2

The Company operates unfunded gratuity scheme which defines the amount of benefit that an
employee will recelve on retirement subject to minimum qualifying period of service under the
stheme. The amount of retirement benefit is usually dependent on one ar more factors such as
age, years of service and salary. Provision for gratuity is made annually to cover obligation under
the scheme in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. Latest actuarial valuation was
conducted on June 30, 2015 on the basis of the projected unit credit method by an Independent
Actuary. The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plan is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period.

The amount arising as a result of re-measurement Is recognised |n the balance sheet
immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprehensive tncome in the periads in which
they occur. Past-service cost, If any, are recognised immediately in income.

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates defined contribution plan (I.e. recognised provident fund scheme) for all
its permanent employees. The Company and the employees make equal monthly contributions
to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary and cost of living allowance. The assets of the
fund are held separately under the control of trustees.

4.10.3 Employees compensated absences

Employees' entitiements to annual leaves are recognised when they acerue to employees. A
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4.19

4.15

provision |s made for the estimated liakility for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by
employeas upto the reporting dates.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at their cost which is the fair value of the tonsideration to
be paid in future for goods and services, whether or not billed to the Company.

Warranty obligations

The Company recognises the estimated liability, on an accrual basis, 1o repair‘ﬁ-am of trucks
under warranty at the reporting date, and recognises the estimated product warranty costs in
priofit and loss account when the saie is recognised.

Product development cost

Product development cost is charged in the year in which it is incurred, Development costs
previously charged to income are not recognised as an asset in the subsequent period.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax payable, adjustments, if any, to provision
for tax made in previous years arising fram assessments framed during the year for such years
and deferred tax.

Current

Pravision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance
with the prevaillng law for taxation of income, The charge for current tax is calculated using
prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted.

Deferred

Daferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary
differences arising from differences between the camying amaunts of assets and liabilites in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of the taxabia
profit,

Deferred tax liabilites are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that itis probable that taxable profit shall be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits
can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the perlod when the
differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except in the
case of items credited or charged to equity in which case itis included in equity.

Financlal assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabtlites are recognised at the tme when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and derecognised when the Company |oses
control of contractual rights that comprize the fimancial assets and in the case of financial
liabiliies when the obligation specified in the contract Is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any
gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities isincluded in the profit
and loss account for the year.
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4.18

Financial instruments carfied on the Balence sheetincludes long term loans, long term deposits,
trade debts, loans & advances; short term deposits, short term investment, other receivables,
hank balances, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, long term depasits, trade and
other payables, acorued mark-up, shert tesm finances and running finances, Al hnancial assets
and liabilities are ininally measured at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given and
recelved respectively, These finantial assets and liabilities are subsequently measired at fair
value, amortsed cost or cost as the case may be. The particular recognition methods adopted are
disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with eachitem. g

Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reparted in the balance sheel
when there |s 2 legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle either on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously,

Pravisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisicne are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation asa
result of past event and it Is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of thie obligaton can be
made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Contingent assets are not recognised and are alsa not disclosad unless an inflow of economic
berefits is probable and contingent liabilitles are not recognised and are disclosed unless the
probability of an outflow of resources embodying econcmic benefits is remate.

Revenue recognition

Bevenue is recognided to the extent that it is probabie that the economic benefits will flow to
the Campany and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable and 5 reduced for allpwances such as
taxes, sales returns and commissicn. Revenue from different sources is recognised on the
following basis:

Trading

.  Vehicles are treated as sold when invelced and delivered, Commission income s
recognised an the basls of shipment,

. Spare part sales are recorded on the basis of dispatches made 1o the customers.
Manufacturing

. ehicles are treated as sold when invaiced and dispatched to customers.
Other

- Return on bank deposits is sccounted For an accrual basis.
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Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the soquisition, construchion or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessanly take a substantial period of time to get ready for their

intended use are added to the cost of those assets, untl such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to income in the period in
which they are incurred,

Fareign currency transiation _.#

Transachons in foreign currencies are translated nto reporting currency at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fareign
currencies are translated into reporting currency equivalents using year end foreign exchange
rates. Mon monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rate that existed when
the values were determined. Exchange differences on foreign currency translations are taken to
profit and loss account currently.

Impairment loss

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identify
circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment hoss or reversal of provisions for impairment
losses. If any indicatons exist, the recoverable amounts of such assets are estimated and
impairment iosses or reversals of impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss
account, Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset,

Eamnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) data for its ardinary shares,
Basic EP5 is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the pesdod.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and other appropriations to reserves are recognised in the period in which they are
approved.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2015 2014
Note eeeee Rupees in 'D00 -
Cperating fixed assets 5.1 1,748,285 1,759,365

Capital work-in-progress
- advance payments against vehicles - 4,673

748,285 7oA
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Freehold land, bulldings on freehold land and plant & machinerny had previously been revalued
on fune 30, 1997, June 30, 1995 January 1, 2004 and June 30, 2008,

The Company as on lune 30, 2014 again revalued its freehald land, buildgings on freshold fand,
plant & machinery and assembly jigs. The revaluation exercise was carried out by Independent
valuer - Harvester Services (Pvt) Lid., (Approved valuérs of Pakistan Banks' Association and
Leasing Association of Pakistan) [ I Chundrigar Road, Karachi. Freehold land was revalued on the
basis of cumrent market price whereas buildings on freehold |and, plant & machinery and
assembly jigs were revalued on the basis of depreciated market value, The appraisal surplus
arlsen on latest revaluation exercise aggreganing Re 468,345 milllon has besan incedporated inthe
books of the Company in accordance with the provisions of section 235 of the Companies
Ordimance, 1984,

Had the operating fixed assets been recognised under the cost model, the carrying amount of
each revalued class of operating fixed assets would have been as follows:

2015 2014
MNote e=e= Rupees in 000 -----
Freehold land 61,456 61.456
Buildings on freehold land 121,299 127.683
Plant and machinery 140,297 135,395
Assembly Jigs 3,535 2,793
Depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:
Cost of goods manufactured 30.1 66,612 51,422
Administrative expenses iz 8,933 3,118
75,505 54,590
The details of operating fixed assets disposed-off are as follows:
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The Company's present and future land, bulldings on freehold land and plant & machinery are

under mortgaged / hypothecated charged upto Rs.1 647 million [2014: Rs. 1,647 million) with

banks for short term finance facllines
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

MNote

These represent computer software licenses

Cost

Accumulated amaortisation
At beginning of the year
Add: charge for the year az
At end of the year

Met book value

Rate of amortisation (% - per annum|

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Subsidiary Company - at cost

Ghandhara DF {Private) Limited

9,999,500 (2014: 5.999,500) ardinary shares of

Rs. 10 each
Equity held: 99.99% [2014: 99.99%)

Break-up value per share on the basis of latest
financial statements is Rs. 1097 (3014:Rs.10)
Assoclated Company - at cost
Ghandhara Industries Limited
5,166, 168 (2014; 5,166, 168) ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each
Equity hield: 24, 75% (2014: 24.25%)
Fair value: Rs.367.986 million | 2014: Rs. 173945 million)
Others - available for sale

Automotive Testing & Training Center
[Private) Limited

187,500 {2014: 187,500} ordinary shares of
Rs.10each - cost

Provision for impairment

LONG TERM LOANS - Unsecured
considered good

Loans to employeess - other than executive 8.1

Amounts recoverable within one year and
grouped under current assets

2015 2014
-=--- Rupees in 000 —----
E 342
30 40
412 382
‘B8 118
25 5
29,995 59,995
92,635 82,635
1,875 1875
(1.875) {1,875)
182,630 152,630
7.957 6,258
(1.480) [1,354)
6,477 4,864

These represent interest free loans provided to employees of the Company as per terms of
employment for various purposes. These loans are repayable on monthly instalments, which

varies from case to case,
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LONG TERM DEPOSITS - Unsecured 2014 2015
considered good ----- Rupees in "000 -----

Deposits held with / against:

- Central Depository Company of Pakistan Uimited 25 5
- lease facilities 10,334 1,732
- utlities 6,174 B 174
- others 100 100
16,633 3,031
STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores 50,059 43,940
Spares and loose tools 115 115
50,174 44,055
STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw materials
- In hand 243,099 331,465
- In transit 239,775 302,388
4BB. BT B33, 853
Finished goods
= In hand
Vehices - Trucks [ Buses 46,872 15,693
Spare parts 39,583 11334
- Held with third parties
Vehicles - Trucks 49,218
= I transit
Complete Bullt-up Units - Trucks 14,300 31,604
148,973 58,621
Less: provision for obsolete / slow moving stock {15,000)
134,973 58,621
623,847 692,474

The present and future stock-in-trade, trade debts and receivables aggregating Rs. 1715 million
(2014: Rs.1,715 million) are under pledge / joint hypothecation charge with banks against short
term finances and running finances.

TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured 2015 2014
considered gooad MNote -==-= RUp&es I "000 ---—
Vehices and assembly charges 21 343,297 363,003
Spare parts 2,430 2,480
345,727 295,583
Trade debts include the following amounts
due from related parties:
Ghandhara DF [Private) Limited 5920 .
Ghandhara Industries Limited 38,713 91,117
Gammon Pakistan Limited 3 *
Rehman Cotton Mills Limited - 5
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The ageing of the trade debts receivable from Associated Companles as at the reporting date are

a5 follows:

2015 2014
Note --—— Rupees in "000 -
Lip to 3 months 37,337 54,013
3 to 6 months 3,209 37,100
40,636 91,122
=
LOANS AND ADVAMNCES - Unsecured
considered good
Current partion of long term loans 8 1,480 1,354
Loans to:
- gnecutives 131 & 13.2 890 1,910
- gtheremployees 131 1,070 375
1,960 2,285
Advances to:
- executives 127 254
- gther employeas 3,679 1.785
- suppliers, contractors and others: 134 26,490 19.823
30,296 21,862
Letters of credit 6,476
40,212 25,541

These represent interest frée general loans and special boans provided to employees in
accordance with Company's policy and have maturities upto twelve months.

Reconciliation of carrying amount of 2015 2014
loans to executives == Rupees in "000 ---
Balance at beginning of the year ,i.,i:l.ﬂ
Disbursements - 2,764
1,310 2,764
REpayments (1,020} {854
Balance at end of the year 890 1,910

The maximum aggregate amount cutstanding at the end of any month during the year ended
June 30, 2015 from executives aggregated to Rs, 1825 million (2024: Rs.2.095 millicna):

Includes Rs. 2,102 million {2014; Rs. Mil) advanced to The General Tyre and Rubber Company of
Pakistan Limited - an Associated Company for purchase of tyres.

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 2015 2014
~=== Rupees in 000 -----

Depaosits 2,727 440
Prepaid

- rent |Blbojee Services (Private) Limited - )

the Holding Company| 3,718 5,118

- athers 1,085 4,948

4,813 14,066

Current account balances with statutory authorities m 1,215

__wmos _ sm
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OTHER RECEIVABLES - Considered good 2015 2014

-——- Rupeés in "000 -=-a-
Sales tax refundable / adjustable - 32,089
Bank guarantee margin B, 186 613
Letters of credit margin 4,477 -
Security deposits and earmest maney 15,186 13,079
Becrued interast 2,815 Bza
Others 135 2,747

o 45,102

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT - Held to maturity

This represents investment in a Term Deposit Receipts (TOR) having face value of Rs 30.00
million (3014: RAs 38.00 million) placed with National Bank of Pakistan for a term of 120 days
(2014: 120 days). This TDR carries mark-up at the rate of 6.20% (2014: T%) per annum and is
maturing on October 10, 2015,

2015 014
BAMK BALANCES
Note raass Rupp@es in 000 -oe-
Cazh at barks on:
- Current actounts 85,910 88,232
- deposit accounts 171 9,917 10,298
term deposits receipts 17.2 237,000 54,000
Provision for doubtful bank balance 7.3 {2.913) {3,912)
328,915 148,618

These, during the year, carry mark-up at the rate of 5.00% (2014: at the rates ranged from B.80%
and 2.00%) per annum.

Term deposit receipts (TORs) have maturity days ranging from slaty to one hundred twenty days
from respective dates of acquisition. These TDRs carry mark-up at rates ranging from 6.00% to
T80 [2004: 7008 to 8.50%) perannum

This reprezents provision made against bank balance held with Indus Bank Umited whose
opefationt were ceased by the State Bank of Pakistan and Is under liquidation. The above
balance is net of As.42.586 million deposited in the depasit account and margin account against
four letters of credit due in May and June 2000, Despite full payments and several reminders,
the payment of above letters of credit has not been made to the supplier of goods. The
Company considers that it has discharged its obligation against the zaid letters of credir.

SHARE CAPITAL 2015 054
--=e- Ruspees in ‘D00 --eee

Authorized capltal

BO, 000,000 {2014: B0, 000,000 ordinary shares of

Rs. 10each m B0, D00

Issued, subseribed and paid-up capital

2018 2014

- No. of sharas --

14,800,000 14,800,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 sach

fuily paid in cash 148,000 148,000

200,000 200,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 sach

issued as fully paid
bonus shares 2,000 2,000

30,002,500 30,002,500 Ordinary shares of Rs, 10 sach

isgued for acquisition 300,025 300,025

45,002,500 45,002,500 450,025 450,025
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Ordinary shares held by related parties other
than the Holding Company as at year end:

Universal Insurance Company Limited
ub Trucks Corporation, lapan

SURPLUS OM REVALUATION OF
FIKED ASSETS - Net

Balance at beginning of the year

Surplus arisen on revaluation carried-out
during the preceding year

Transferred to unappropriated profit on
account of incremental depreciation for the year

Less: related deferred tax of:
- apening balance

- 4urplus arisen during the preceding year
- incremental depreciation for the year

- effect of change in tax rate

- clesing balance

Batance at end of the year

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT
TO FINANCE LEASE

Balance at beginning of the year
Assets acquined during the year
Aepaid / adjusted during the year

Current portion grouped under current liabilities

Balance at end of the year

(2014: 52,329 issued, subscribed and paid-up-capital of the Company.

2015 1034
= Numbér of shares —

- 5,000
3,647,090 3,647,090
3,647,000 3,652,000

2015 2014

cemex Rupeas in "000 -
1,357,938 919,950
. 458,345
(48,071) (30,397)
1,311,867 1,357,938
303,750 206,701
- 113,159
113,821} (10,335)
(26,357) {5,775)
1,048,295 1,054,188
16,662 1.260
ar77r 17,315
{7.417) 11,913
57,022 16,662
{11,387) {3,656)
45,635 13,006

Thesa represent vehicles acquired under finance lease / diminishing musharakah arrangements
from varlous financial institutions. Rentals are payable on monthly basis. These Rnance
Facilities, during the year, were subject to finance cost at the rates ranged from 11% to 17.50%
[2014: 15.27% to 17.32%) per annum. These facilites are secured against title of the leased
wehicles in the name of lessor. The Company intends to exercise its oprion to purchase the

leased vehidies upon completion of the lease terms,

The future minimum lease payments to which the Company is committed under the agreements

willl be due as follows:
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2211
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Mnimum lease payments 16,513 52,520 69,033 5695 15,5682 21,287

Finance cost alliocated o

future periods (5126)  (6.885) (12,011) (2039) (2.585) (4.625)
Present value of minimum
lease payments 11,387 45635 ST022 3656 13.008 16,662
LONG TERM DEPOSITS 2015 2014
Mote = eeee Rupees in "000 -
Dealers’ deposit 211 9,000 10,000
WVendors 111 111
Others 500 500
8,611 10,611
These depotits are interest free and are not refundable during subsistence of dealership,
DEFERRED LIABILITIES 2015 2014
Note - Rupees in "000 ---—
Provision for gratuity 2.1 83,370 70,404
Provision for compensated absences 28,583 24,351
Gain on sale and lease back of fixed assets 2.7 16 3
111,969 a4, 795
Provisian for gratuity

The Company's obligation as per the latest actuarial valuation in respect of defined benefir
gratuity plan is as follows:

Amount recognised in the balance sheet 015 2014

is as follows w=mes RUpEES in "000 «=-=-
Present value of defined benefit obligation 80,791 70,356
Benefits payable 2,579 48
Met liability at end of the year 83,370 70,404

Met liabliity at beginning of the year T0,.404
Charge to profit and |oss account 14,020
Re-measurement recognised In
other comprehensive income 2061 3,636
Payments made during the year [1113]
£3.370

Met liability at end of the year

Maovement in the present value
of defined benefit obligation

Balance at beginning of the year T0,356 60,895
Cusrent service cost 5,072 4,333
Interest cost 8,948 6,149
Benefits paid {3,115) {4,657)
Benefits due bul not paid {2,531) -
Re-measurement on obligation 2,061 3,636

Balance at end of the year BO, 791 70,356
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Expense recognised in profit and 2015 2014

loss account === Rupees in ‘000 ----
Cwrrent service cost 5,072 4,333
Interest oost 8,948 6,149
14,020 10482
Re-measurement recognised in
other comprehensive Income
i
Experience adjustments 2,061 3636
2015 2014
Actuarial assumptions used === 3 pEF ANNUM ===
Nscount rate 9.75 1335
Expected rate of increase in future salaries 9.75 13.25
Mortality rates (for death in service) suUc SLIC
2001- 2005 2001-2005

Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in principal assumptions is:
Impact on define benefit obligation

Change In Increase In Decrease in
assum- assumption assumption
ptian -== Rupees in "000 -
Discount rate 1.0 74,691 86,011
Increase in future salaries 1.00% 86,021 74,585

The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and change In some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
abligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of defined
benefit obligaton calculated with the projected. unit credit method at the end of reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the gratuity liabllity recognised within the balance
sheet

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensiivity analysis did not change
compared to the previous period.

Based on actuary’s advice, the expected charge to profit and loss account for the year ending
Jume 30, 2016 amourits to RS 12828 million,

The weighted average duration of the scheme is 7 years.

Historical information 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Rupees in "000

Present valse of defined
benefit obligation 80,791 70,356 60,885 48,553 44,758

Experience adjustment
on obligation 2,061 3636 4972 (4,798) (4.812)




As at June 30, 2015
22,2  Gainon sale and lease back of fixed assets

12130 Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit plan:

Less
than a
yaar

Batweean || Batween
1-Z years || 2-5 years

Over 5
years

Total

Rupees in "000
5,827 3,469 23,333 447,690 484,319

a
The Company has entered into a sale and lease back transaction during the yearwhich results in
finance lease. The excess of sale proceeds aver the net book value of vehicle under sale and
lease back arrangement has been recognised as deferred Income and is amortized over the

period of lease term,
DEFERRED TAXATION - Met

The liability for deferred tanation comprises of
temporary differences relating to:

--accelerated tax depreciation allowance
- surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
- lease finances
- provision for gratuity
- provision for compensated absences
- provision for warranty claims
- provision for obsolete / slow maoving stock
- prowvision for bank balances
- mininum tax recoverable against
normal tax charge infuture years
- gncess of alternative corporate tax over
corporate taxe s recoverable in future years
= unused tax losses

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors

Bills payable

Accrued liabilites

Refundable - CKD / CBU business
Customers’ credit balances
Commission

Undaimed gratuity

Dealers’ depasits against vehides
Custom duties payable

Due to related parties
Withholding tax

Sales tax payable - net

Workers' profit participation fund
Workers' welfare fund

Retention money

Unclaimed dividend

‘Warranty claims

Others

(25,845)
(&861)

i

821
{23.5849)
{8,531)

{1,291}
(75,912)

[17,948)
(70,074)

158,039

24.4

2458 24.6

85,065
241,038
20,376
1,403
183,616
17,918
231
52,800
2,263
21.854
1314

14,434
5512
103
961

12,962

blocsabtant Susballi J§

TE7, 240




-

-

4.4

Includes Rs. 20,173 million {2014; Rs.13. 704 million} which pertains to a key management person.

These represent advances from customers against sale of trucks and carmy no mark-up.

015 04
Due to related parties Note ~  -eeee Rupees in "000 -----
UD Trucks Corporation - Japan 10,334 7676
Universal Insurance Company Limited . - 3,058
Rehman Cotton Mills Limited !.ﬂ,% -
The General Tyre and Rubber Company
of Pakistan Limited - 3
Gammaon Pakistan Limited - an2
Wagf-e-Kuli Khan 9,885 9,885
30,219 21894
Workers® profit participation fund
Balance at beginning of the year 14,484 962
Allocation for the year 34 42,281 14,484
Interest on funds utilised in the
Company’s business 3s 1,631 &7
58,396 15,533
Payment made during the year {18,115] {1,049)
Balance at end of the year 42,281 14, 484

Includes Rs.2.479 million (2014: Rs.3.675 million) which pertain to key management personnel.

Includes deposits and installments under the Company's staff vehicle pollcy aggregating Rs.5.083

million {2014; Rs.2.654 million) and Rs.0.104 millien surchange on sales tax.

ACCRUED MARK-UP 2015 2014
Note ----- Rupees in '000 ----
Mark-up accrued on:
- short term finances 586 259713
- running finances 7,399 2,205
7,985 5178
SHORT TERM FINANCES - Secured
Finance against trust receipts
- Mational Bank of Pakistan 16.1 - 225,743
Finance against imported merchandise
- The Bank of Khyber 26.2 - 181,245
Short term demand finance
- Faysal Bank Limited 26.3 32,259 41,873
32,358 448,861
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The Company has arranged Finance against imported Merchandise (FIM) and Finance Against
Trust Recelpts (FATR) facililes of an aggregate limit of Rs.500 million { 2014 : Rs. 500 million] from
Maticnal Bank of Pakistan. These faclines are secured against effective pledge of imported
goods, duly signed trust receipts and cumulative charge (equitable and hypothecation] over the
Company's land, bullding and plant & machinery. These facilites carry mark-up at the rate of 3
months KIBOR plus 200 basis points, FIM and FATR are repayable within 120 days of
disbursement / creation, These finance facilities are available upto October 31, 2015

The Company has also arranged FIM of fs.250 million |2014: R=.250 million) from the Bank of
Ehyber. This finance facility Is secured against effective pledge of imported consignments, first
pari passu charge over land along with buildings and plant & machinery upto As,.24 millien and
hypothecation charge over all present and future stocks & books debts upto Rs 500 million, This
facllity carries mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 300 basis points. FIM is adjustable
within 120 days of disbursement / creation. This finance facility is available up to Decernber 31,
2015,

The Company had arranged short term foan of Rs.330 miltion from Faysal Bank Limited (the Bank}
against outstanding import bills. Originally this lcan was repayable in monthly instaiments of
Rs.22 million each. The Company during the prior years had repaid instalments aggregating
R 215 milllion and Balance of Rs.115 million was renewed by the Bank. The Company has made
principal payments of Rs.82, 741 million tll Jere 30, 2015 of this renewed finance facility. Balance
of this finance Facility, during the year, has. been again renewed by the Bank. This facility is
secured against first pari passu charge of As. 367 million on stacks and recelvablas, ranking charge
of Rs.434 millicn over stocks & receivables and ranking charges of Rs.400 million on plant and
machinery of the Company. The short term loan carries mark-up at the rate of six months KIBOR
plus 1.80% per annum,

RUNMING FINANCES UNDER MARK-UP 2015 2014
ARRANGEMENTS - Secured Mote wees Rupees in "000 -----
Balance 2% at june 30, 71 118,802 54, 380

Running finance facilities available from commerdial banks under mark-up arrangements
aggregate 1o Rs 378 million (2014: Rs.275 million] and are secured by way of equitable,
hypothecation and pari passu charge over finxed and current assets of the Company. These,
during the current finandial year, carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 7% to 12.21% (2014:
11.06% 1o 12.17%) per annum. The arrangements are expiring on March 31, 2016,

The facilities for opening letters of eredit and guarantees as at June 30, 2015 aggregated to
As. 1,577 million (2014: Rs.1,562 million) of which the amount remained unutilised at the year-
end was Rs 891344 million (2015 Rs. 774 362 million).

CONTINGENCIES AND COPMMITMENTS

Certain cases have been filed against the company in respect of employees matiers. Theése cases
are pending in labour courts, high court and before National industrial Relations Commission,
Karachi, The management is confident that the cutcome of these cases will be in the Company’s
Favaour

Commitment in respect of irrevacable letters of oredit as at June 30, 2015 aggregate to As, 665,609
millicn (2014 R 777,335 millign].

Guarantess aggregating Rs. 20,047 million [2014: Rs.10.202 million) are issued by banks of the
Company to varlous government and cther institutions,



9. REVENUE - Net 2015 2014

Mote === Rupees in 000 -----
Manufactured activity
Local 5,891,705 2,770,406
Export - 20,965
5,891,705 2,801,371
Less: :
- sales tax 856,060 4032 538
- COMmMMiSSion 76,559 39 850
m,,ﬂa 442,388
4,959,086 2,358,583
Trading activity
Local 573,621 317,524
Export 1,360 2,902
574,981 320,426
Less:
- sales tax H3 414 46,175
- discount and commission 5,261 13,324
BE.B7S 59,499
ABE, 306 260,927
5,445,392 2,519,310
30, COSTOF SALES
Finished goods at beginning of the year 58,621 53,856
Cost of goods manufactured 30.1 3,892,247 1,905,707
Purchases - trading gaods 498,483 247,879
4,390,730 2,153,586
Finished goods at end of the year i1 {134,573) [SH.E21)
4,314,378 2,148,821
30.1 Costof goods manufactured
Work in process at beginning of the year . 24,320
Raw materials and parts consumed 30.2 3,442,427 1,587,503
Fabrication of contract vehicles 16,869 7,881
Stores and spares consumed 'i.,ﬂ 27,908
Provision for obsolete / slow moving stock 15,000 -
Salaries, wages and benefits 30.3 142,555 114,548
Transportation 8291 9,209
Repair and maintenance 19,744 2,683
Depreciation 5.4 66,612 51,422
taterial handling 7.390 1,180
Insurance 4,058 3,452
Communication 524 476
Rent, rates and taxes 15,056 414
Travelling and entertainment 952 B4
Power generation costs 52,736 47108
Printing, stationéry and office supplies _ Eag 910
Royalty expense 15,420 9,469
Product upgradation charges BT00 -
Plant security 5,486 4,698
Product development cost 5,075 -
Other manufacturing expenses 3,146 1,641
3,892,247 1,905,707




Raw materials and parts consumed
Stocks at beginning of the year
Purchases

Stocks at end of the year

2015 2014
<o Rupees in 000 -----

331,465 48,727
3,360, 1,880,241
3,651,526 1,928,968

(245,099) {331,465}
3,842,427 1,597,503

Salaries, wages and benefits include Fs.4,681 million {2014, Rs.3,160 milllon) and £s.2.528 million
{2014: As 23237 million) in respect of staff refirement gratuity and staM provident fund

respectivaly,

DISTRIBUTION COST
Note

Salaries and benefits 11
utilities

Rent of shewroom

Insurance

Repair and maintenance

Trawelling and entertainment
Telephone and postage

Vehicle running

Printing, stationery and office supplies
Security

Warranty services

Godown and forwardng

Sales promotion expenses

Others

2015 2014
seoes RUPERS in ‘000 2use

19,486 13,037
1 203

76
2,627
148
743
87
511
281
1129
7TE

AT

15,318

Salaries and banefits indude Rs 00171 million {2014: Rs.0.167 million) and Rs.0.867 million {2014
As.0.B23 miilion] in respect of stal retirement gratuity and staff provident fund respectively,

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPEMSES
MNate

salaries and benefits 321
Utilites

Rent, rates and taxes

Directors’ fee

Insurance

Repairs and malntenance

Deprecatian and smortisation 486
Auditors' remuneration 322
Advertising

Travelling and conveyanoe

Legal and professional charges

Vehicle running

Telephone and postage

Printing and stationery

Subscription

Seourity expenses

Danation 313
Others

2015 2014
e Ruipees in " 000 ----

85,605

4,887

T.627

A50

B52

1,506

T TH AT
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Sataries and benefits Include Rs.9.167 million (2014: Rs.7.155 millian) and Rs.2.064 million (2004
Rs.L.EB31 million) In respect of staff retirement gratuity and staff provident fund respectively

s 2014
Auditors’ remuneration ceses Rupees in 000 =--—
Audit fee
Hameed Chaudhri & Co. - 300 250
Muniff Ziauddin & Co 300 250

&0 500

Mone of the dirsctors or their spousas had any interest in the donees.

OTHER INCOME Note -?-,-sﬁuplli in 'u]:?ji

Income from financial assets

Interest income 331 10,076 2,183

Income from non-financial assets

Scrap sales - net of sales tax 4,128 3,921

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 5.5 l,lm 568

Amortization of gain on sale and lease back

of fixed assets 4 .

Commission income 6,579 5,154

Cthers 4,258 Te9
16,258 10,512
26,335 12,695

Interest at the rates ranged from 6.00% to B.50% (2014: 7.00% to 2.00%) per annum has been
earned during the year on term deposit receipts and deposit accounts.

OTHER EXPENSES ke .T.'smm i mﬂili
Workers' profit participation fund 4.4 42,281 14,484
Workers' welfare fund 16,067 5,504
58,348 19,988
FINANCE COST
Mark-up on:
- short term finances 35,688 16,920
- running finances M 22,575
Lease finance charges 3,731 653
Exchange loss - net 10,055 5,733
Interest on workers' profit participation fund 4.4 1,631 87
Bank and other charges 4,304 4,250
86,294 50,218
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2015 2014

Lociss -===- Rupees in ‘000 -----
Current
- for the year 141,103 44, 384
- for prigr year - [64)
141,103 44,920
Deferred
arigination and reversal of temporary differences w'm. il 46,251
- impact of change in tax rate 120,243) 4,594
137,307 50,845
278,410 95,765
June 30,
Relationship between income tax expense 2015
and accounting profit Rs in "000
Net profit before taxation 787,277
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of 335 250,801
Tax effect of expenses, which are not deductible for tax
purposesand are taken to profit and loss account 43,533
Tax effect of expenses, which are deductible for tax
purposes but are not taken to profit and ioss account {14,140)
Effect of tax credits mﬂ
Tax effect of unused tax losses (70,074)
Tax effect of income subject 1o final tax regime im
Super tax for rehabilitation of temporarily displaced persons 18,980
Deferred taxation WM
278,410

Mo numeric tas rate reconciliation for the preceding year Is given in the financial statements as
provision made during the preceding year mainly represents alternate corporate tax payable
under section 113C and final {ax deducted under section 154 Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 [the
Ordinance).

Section 5A of the Ordinance imposes tax at the rate of ten percent on every public company
other than a scheduled bank or modaraba, that derlves profits for tan year but doss not
distribute cash dividend within six manths of the end of said tax year or distribute dividends to
such an extent that it's reserves, after such distribution, are in excess of 100% of its pald up
capital. However, this tax on undistributed reserves is not applicable to a public company which
distributes profit egual to either 40% of its after tax profits or 50% of its issued, subscribed and
pald up capital, whichever is less, within six months of the end of the tax year,

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 16, 2015 has distributed sufficient
eazh dividend for the year ended June 30, 2015 (refer note 45) which complies with the above
stated reguirements. Accordingly, no provision for tax on undistributed reserves has been
recognised in these inandial statememnts for the year ended June 30, 2015
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EARNINGS PER SHARE 2014

—eeee RuUpees in ‘000 -
Basic earnings per share
Met profit for the year % 173,930
- Mumber of shares --
Weighted average ordinary sharesin lssue 45,002,500 45,003,500
- fupees
Eamings per share 1131 3.86

Diluted earnings per share

No figures far diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any
instruments carrying options which would have an impact on eamings per share when exercised.

REMUMNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

2015 2014
E:::I:“ Director Executives Exec‘::ﬁfm Director  Executives.
Rupees in "'000

Managerial remuneration. 9,000 3,600 52,761 9000 3600 3r.3s1
Contribution to provident

fund 456 - 2,154 456 - 1.694

Gratuity 228 - 1,700 228 - 1,263

LHilitias = = ‘2,403 = - 2.645

9684 3,600 59,018 9584 3600 42,953

MNumber of parsons 1 1 30 1 1 23

The Chief Executive is alse entitled for the use of the Company maintained car, security
expenses, telephone expenseés and medical expenses at actual. He is also entitied to receive
ather benefits as per Company policy applicable to all managerment employees,

Director and certain Executives of the Company are also provided with free use of the Company
maintained vehicles,

Aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for meeting fee te Directors was Rs.0.725
million |2014: Rs.0.450 million).

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of the Holding Company, the Subsidiary Company, Assotated
Comparies, directors of the Company, companies in which directors are Interested, staff
retirement benefit plan, key management personnel and dose members of the families of the
directors & key management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries
out transactions with various related parties, Amounts due from and to refated parties are
shown under recaivables and payables. Significant transactions with related parties are as follows:
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Mature of

transaction — Rupees in ‘000 —
(i} Holding Company
Bibojee Services Rent 17,400 5,400
(Private) Limited Dividend 56,093 -
(i) Subsidiary Company
Ghandhara DF (Private) Investment made 40,000 59,995
Limited Contract assembly 4,733 = -
Sale of truck and parts 2,187 -
{1il) Associated Companles
Universal Insurance
Company Limited INSUraNCE premium 1,542 250
The General Tyre and Purchase of tyres, tubes
Rubber Company of and flaps 73,354 38823
Pakistan Limited Sale of parts - 59
Ghandhara Industries Contract assembly 88,218 117,257
Limited Fabrication of wehicles 6,700 1.241
Purchase of vehicle 2,250 -
Expense reimbursement 180 -
Sale of leet vehicles s 566
Rahman Cotton Mils Purchase of plant & machinen, 10,000 -
Lirmited Sale of parls - &
Gammon Pakistan Office rent 1,500 1,500
Limited Sale of paris 3 -
({iw) Others
UD Trucks Corporation, Royalty 14,041 9,469
Japan Purchases of compilate
knack down kits 2,274,299 1,469,303
Dividend 7.294 -
Stafl provident fund Contribution made 5,459 4,981
Key management Remuneration and other
personnal short term benefits 32,636 28774
Sale of fleat vehicles - 917
PLANT CAPACITY

Against the production capacity of 2,500 trucks and buses on single shift basis, the Company
produced 1,922 [2014; 1,246) trucks and buses of UD, Isuzu, DongFeng and Kamaz. The Company
has also processed 1,842 (2014: 1,115) Truck cabs through paint shop. Actual production was
sufficient to maet the demand.

Against the designed annual production capacity of 5,000 vehicles at car plant, an single shift
basis, the Company has assemblied 446 [2014; 803) vehicles of Land Rover. Due to low demand
the plant capacity remained under-utilized.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- credit risk;
- liguidity risk; and
- miarket risk {Including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk).
The board of directors has owverall responsibility for the establishment and owverview  of

Companys risk management frame work. The board is also responsible for developing and
manitaring the Company's risk management policies, a4

Credit risk

Credit nsk represents the financial loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter
parties Fail completely to perform as cantracted / fail to discharge an obligation / commitment
that it has entered into with the Company.

Credit risk primanily arises trom long term loans, long term deposits, trade debts, loans and
advances, other receivables, short term investment and bank balances, To manage exposure to
credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking Into account
the custarmer's finandal position, past experience and other relevant factors. Where considered
necessary, advance payments are obtained from. Credit risk on bank balances and margin held
with banks is limited as the counter parties are banks with reasonably crediting ratings.

The maximurm exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2015 along with comparative is tabulated
below;

015 2014
weeee RUpees in 000 -----
Long term loans 6,477 4,864
Long term de posits 6,299 6,299
Trade debts 345,727 395,583
Loans and advancas 3,440 3,679
Deposits and prepayments B g -
Other receivables 30,749 17.063
Short term investmant 30,092 38,000
Bank balances 328,915 14B.618
754,426 614,106

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the reporting date by geographic region
is as follows:

2015 2014
=eeee Rupees in ' 000 ==
Domestic 345,151 495,279
Export 576 304
345,727 395,583
The ageing of trade debts at the reporting date Is as follows:
Up to 3 months 94,070 122,917
3to 6 manths 49,989 112,318
mare than & months :,Hl 160,348
345,727 395,583

Based on past experience, consideration of financial position, past track records and recoveries,
the Company believes that trade debts past due over six months do not reguire any impai rment.



412

[a)

Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk iz the nsk that the Company will not be able to meet its inancial obligations as
they fall due; The Company’s approach is tor ensure, as far as possible, toalways have sufficent
liquidity 1o meet its Habilines when due. Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash eguivalent and ensuring the availabllity of adequate credit facifities.
The Company's treasury department aims at malntaining flexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines available.

Fimancial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below:
llfhuul‘ia 5 ymars

1t 5 and
Yo ars abova

Carrying Less than
amount 1 year

June 30, 2015 wemmeeeeeme s Rupgas in 000 e
Liabilities against assets $

subject to finance lease 57,022 11,387 45,635 -
Long term de posits 9.611 - - 2,611
Trade and othar payables 341,069 341,060 - e
Accrued mark-up 7,985 7,985 - -
Short term finances 32,259 32,259 - -
Running finances under _ _ - |

mark-up arrangements 118,802 118,802 - -

566,748 511,502 45835 9,611

Carrying Less than Betweesn 1 5years
amowunt 1year to5years and above

June 30, 2014 s RUDEES 1 000 e
Liabdities against assels

subjact to finance lease 16,862 3,656 13,006 -
Long term deposits 10,611 - - 10,611
Trade and other payables 455,751 455,751 - -
Acorued mark-up 5178 5,178 . -
Short term finances 448,861 448 861 - -
Running finances under

mark-up arrangements 54,380 54,380 - -

801,443 967,026 13.006 10:611

Market risk
Market risk Is the risk that changes In market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices will effect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control marker risk
expasures with acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk

Currency risk is tha risk that fair value of future cash flows of 3 financial instrument will Auctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company Is exposed to currency risk on
Import of raw materials, stores & spares and commission income denominated in U.5. Dollar,
Japanase Yen and Chinese Yuan Renminbl (RMB). The Company's exposura to foreign currency
risk at the reporting date is as follows:




(&)

June 30, 2015 bR EHOC NI LR, TF TR0 | | R —

Trade and other payables 123,414 123,547 140 arn
Trade debts {576) = (8} =
Net exposure 122,838 123,547 134 a7

Rupees Yen L85 RME
June 30, 2004 e e == i DO e e e
Trade and other payables 227,346 188,049 b 4,113
Trade debts {304) B 13 3
Net exposure 237,042 188,048 13 4,113
The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

Reporting date rate
2015 2014

¥en to Rupee 0.8213 0.9748
U5 S0 Rupes 101.70 / 101.50 98.55
RME to Rupess 16.39 15.91

Sensitivity analysis
At June 30, 2015, if Rupee had strengthened by 5% against Yen, Dollar and RMB with all other
variables held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have been higher! {lower) by
the amount shown below mainly as a résult of net foreign exchange galn on transiation of net
Finarncial labilities.

2015 2014

Effect on profit for the year «=-= Rupees in "000 -----
Yen to Aupee 5,073 9166
U.S. Sto Rupee 681 (15}
RME to Rupee 386 3,272
6,140 12,423

Intere st rate Flak

Interest P& risk is the risk that fair value or future cagh flews of a financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Majority of the Interest rate risk of the Company arises from shart term borrowings from banks,
short term investment and balances held with banks. At the reporting date the profile of the
Campany's interast bearing finandal instruments s as follows:

2015 n4
Financial asset - fixed rate instruments weeee Ruip@es in '000 -----
Short term investment 30,000 38,000
Bank balances 246,917 B4, 258

276,917 102,298

Financial Liabilities - variable rate instruments

Liabilities agalnst assets subject to finance lease 57,022 16,662

Short term finances 32,259 448,861

Running finances under mark-up arrangements 118,B0Z 54,380
08, DET 519,903
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Sensitvity analysls for flved rate Instruments

The ﬂumphﬂf doed fot ascaunt far &y fized rate Hnancal asssts and liakilites at falr value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in intergst rates at the reporting date would not
affect materially profit for the year.

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis point in interest rates at the reporbng date would have (decreased) /
increased profit lor the year by the amounts shown below,. This analysis assumed that all other
variables, in particular foreign currency rates remain constant. The analysis is pegormed on the
same basks for 2004,

Increate (Decrease)}
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate financial iabilities == Rupees in ‘000 ---
As at June 30, 2015 2,081 (2,081)
As an June 30, 2014 5,195 {5,159)

The sensitivity analysis preprred s not ne cessanly indicative of the effects on profit for the year
and liabilities of the Company.

Priee risk

Price risk i3 the risk that fair value or future cash flows From a financial instrument will Auctuate
due to changes In market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk].
Whetherthose changes are caused by factors specifie to the individual finandal instrument or its
izsuer, or factors affecting all similar inandial instruments traded in the market. At June 30, 2015
J ¥4 the Company did not have any financial instruments dependent on market prices.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amaunt for which an aszet could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm'’s length transaction.

At June 30, 2005 f 2004 the carrying values of all financial assets and lisbilities reflected in the
financial statements approximate ta their falr values except for staff loans which are valued at
thair original cast less repayments.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company's prime objective when managing capital is 1o safeguard its ability to continue asa
going concem so that it an continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits. for other
stakeholders and ta maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of iis
buginess.
The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net asseds and makes
adjustments ta it in the light of changes In economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to sharehol ders and
J or issue new shares, There was no change to the Company’s approach to capital management
during the year,
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 201% 2014
Mumber of employees as at june 30,

226 227
— e e e

231

- Permanent

= Contractual

302

Average number of employees during the year

- Permanent E. 226
277 230

- Contractusl




DISCLOSURE RELATING TO PROVIDENT FUND
The following information is based on un-audited financial statements of the Fund for the year

ended June 30, 2015

2015 04
= Rup&es in 000 ---
Size of the Fund - total assets 3177 63,621
Cost of investments made it.'!g_ 50,050
Percentage of investments made 83.23% 94.3%%
Fair value of investments 78,999 65,641
Break-up of the Investments is as follows;
2015 14 2015 2014
weres PRICENTAZE - - Rupees in ‘000 ---
Bank deposits 167 1.74 1,219 1,106
Government securines “ 7894 55,796 50,220
Mational lnvestment Trust - units 1531 137 11,206 272

investmants out of Pravident Fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section
227 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.
MNON-ADIUSTING EVENT AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on September 18, 2015 have
proposed final cash dividend of Rs.4.5 (2014 Rs.2.00) per share, amounting to Rs. 20251 million
(2014; Rs.90.005 million), for the year ended June 30, 2015. The proposed dividend will be
approved in the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on October 22nd, 2015.

These finandal statements do not reflect the proposed dividend, which will be accounted for in
the statement of changes in equity as appropriation from unappropnated profit in year ending
June 30, 2016,

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on September 16, 2015 by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified for better presentation wherever
considered necessary, the effect of which is not material,

Ahlrmed Kull Khan Khattak Ch. Sher Muhamimad
Chief Executive Director

Karachi: 168" September, 2015



Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance
This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (the CCG) contained in the

Regulation Na. 5.19 of the Rule Boak of Karachi Stock Exchange Limited and Regulation Mo. 35 of Chapter X1 of
the listing regulations of Idlamabad Stock Exchange Limited for the purpose of establishing a framework of good
governance, whereby a fisted company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate

Bovernance. o
The Company has applied the principles cortained in the COG in the following manner;

1 The Company encourages represantation of independent non-executive directors
and directors representing minarity interest on its board of directors. At present

the board includes:

Category Kames

Executive Directors (2) M. Ahmed Kull Khan Rhattak
Mr, Jamil A, Shah

Mon Executive Cirectors (6) hr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak
Lt, Gen. {Retd.} Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Mushtag Ahmed Ehan (FCA)
Ch. Sher Muhammad
Syed Haroon Rashid
Mr. Larii Kbl

independent Director (1] har. Mohammad Zia

2 MWone of the Directors is serving on the Board of more than seven fisted companies,

3 All the resident directors of the Company are registered as tax payers and nene of them has defaulted
in payment of any logn to a banking company, a Develapmeént Finance Institution (DEI) or a Non-
Banking Finance Institution (NBFI) or, being a member of stock exchange, has been declared as a
defaulter by that stock exchange.

4 Mo casual vacancy has occurred during the period under the review,

5 The Company has prepared a code of conduct and have ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company alang with the supporting policies and procedures,
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11

13

14

15

16

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall carporate strategy and significant policies
of the Company. & complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which

they were approved or amended has been maintained.

All powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions; including
appointment and determinarion of remuneration and terms and conditdons of employment of the CEQ,
other executive and non executive directors have been taken by the Board/Sharghoiders.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chalrman and, In his absence, by a directar
elected by the Board for this purpose and the Board mat at least once in every guarter. Written notices
of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working. papers, were circulated at least seven days
before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

All directors of the Company have more than 14 vears of education and 15 years of experience on the
board of directors of listed companies.

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFQ), Company Secretary and Head of

internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment.

The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requiraments of the Code
of Corporate Governance and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

Thie financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the CED and the CFO befare approval
of the Board.

The Directors, CEQ and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company ather than
that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirerments of the Code of
Carporate Governancs.

The Board has formed an Audit Committee, It comprises of four members, Three of them are non-
executive directors and Chairman of the Committee is Independent Director.

The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim
and final results of the Company and as required by the Code of Corporate Governance. The terms of
reference of the Committee have been formed and advised to the Committee for compliance.
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The Board has formed a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of five members

of whom three are non-executive directors including the Chairman of the Committee.
The Board hag set up an effective internal Audit Funchion,

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review Programme of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
{ICAPR), that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares
of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation
of &ccountants (IFAC) Guidelines on Code of Ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appoinied 1o provide other
services except in accardance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they
have observed IFAC guidelines In this regard,

The "Closed Period’, prior to the announcement of interim/final results, and business decisions, which
may materially affect the market price of Company's securities, was determined and intimated to

directors, employees and stock exchanges,

Material/price sensitive Information has been disseminated amaong all market participants at once
through stock exchanges.

We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the Code of Corporate Governance have
been complied with.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ahmed Kull Khan Khattak
Chief Executive Officer

Karachi; 16th Septembear 2015



REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Wa have reviewed the endiosed Statement of Compliance with the best prachices contained in the
Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of Ghandhara Nissan
Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2015 to comply with the Code contained in
regulation No.5.19 of the Rule Book of Karachi Stock Exchange Limited and}gutannn Mo.35 of
Chagpter X1 of the Listing Regulations of the Islamabad Stock Exchange Limited where the Company is
listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility s to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified,
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the
pravisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Code, A review is limited primarily to inguiries of the Company’s persannel and
review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As a part of our audit of financial statements we are reguired to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to pian the audit and develop an effective audit
approach., We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company's corparate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval of its
related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to
those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's
length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,
We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were
undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as applicable to the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2015,

HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO., MUNIFF ZIAUDDIN & CO.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Muhammad Ali Muhammad Moin Khan

Karachi; 16th September 2015 Karachi: 16th September 2015



Key Operating and Financial Data

[Bin por)
Particulars jund5  Junid o med?  ledl kedD Jundd
13[Restated)

Sains SMSMI 619910 i8S Lam  Lssooes  palen  nosasss
daprs profit | floss) 1AL 0 47108% 215500 130,57 151213 115,31 5358
Pt oas] belore MEAT 9AS T8 ETASY (M4SN LMEDT MBATHY
ProfitfiLoss] after ta 548,857 171830 1330 {85 968} 707 (BRBs3) 12189
shase Capital aoms 400 quappe 4magaE B 4Wmms 4500
Shasgholders pgaity TN enA0 BILBE SESMLE  eELTH EMM 60
Fined Ausety - Mot AT 1764038 LA6I6E  13E1EA0  JAGIEIE  L4%E9 15312
Total Aty ASTLAE 1434054 LATS50  LIGA0E  A096033  AdenaEl 3R
it Prociué s and Suppbed [Contrat Assemy| (1 R 1568 137 LS 140
{oniks Produend L 184 m 13 169 59 8ot
Units Sold (C3L) £ 52 4 12 7 i 100
Lopita Sold (0D (13 380 125 130 E62 766 06
Dividend - Caih "y 0%
Fiaths
ekl Ty
Gregs profit magn 8% L% 1. S4% 952N 43T 0265
Frafy/{Lom) bedies mx 1454 1w G S 514% [28%)
Prof /Lo alte tin a3 TS bEM AW 0TS 170% 2551
Retum 1o share hoders:
RetumyLoss] on Equity (87 sB a2 a8 B3N 23w posasl (eaane)
Risturry[Loss) on Exuity (4T How 1% 185 [N LN GADER) TR
Earning/fLomst pe shavn (3T Re 1748 599 029 .00 LED fedsy o)
Earning/{Loes) e shave |AT)- Re. RE ) N 01 (281 [ f158) {654}
Basic Eaeming Per Share 1 186 0 fL91) 016 {138} {654}
Sabes 12 toeal agsets - Times 151 078 04 051 088 (k] a8t
Salens b Prund suaats Timas S 149 140 100 184 181 134
Uguidity: "
Ciprat raiic - Timigh w L1k 1ot Qa5 I 109 156
Bramk-up value per thare- By 10 LE 1 411 1 147 1407 1552



Pattern of Shareholding
As at 30th June 2015

No. of Having Shares

PO Fici To SharesHeld  Percentage
722 1 100 23,629 0.0525
1,227 101 500 546,152 1.2136
508 501 1,000 484 829 1.0773
724 1,001 5,000 1,971,649 7 4.3812
164 5,001 10,000 1,270,723 2.8237
13 10,001 15,000 436,565 0.9701
33 15,001 20,000 613,870 1.3641
16 20,001 25,000 361,948 0.8043
10 25,001 30,000 283,277 0.6295
5 30,001 35,000 168,000 0.3733
4 35,001 40,000 148,000 0.3289
2 40,001 45,000 81,500 0.1811
10 45,001 50,000 499,000 11088
2 50,001 55,000 107,000 0.2378
1 55,001 60,000 173,584 0.3857
4 60,001 65,000 252,624 0.5614
3 85,001 70,000 66,500 0.1478
1 70,001 75,000 75,000 0.1667
2 75,001 80,000 153,501 0.3411
1 80,001 85,000 £1,000 0.1800
3 85,001 90,000 264,500 0.5877
5 95,001 100,000 496,500 1.1033
1 100,001 105,000 102,500 0.2278
2 120,001 125,000 246,000 05466
1 130,001 135,000 130,500 0.2900
1 195,001 200,000 200,000 0,4444
1 245,001 250,000 245,813 0.5462
1 300,001 305,000 302,000 0.6711
1 370,001 375,000 370,500 0.8233
1 385,001 390,000 387,500 0.8611
1 665,001 670,000 666,600 1.4813
1 745,001 750,000 748,500 1.6632
1 1,355,001 1,380,000 1359711 3.0214
1 3,645,001 3,650,000 3,647,090 8.1042
5,115,001 5,120,000 5,119,820 11,3768
22,915,001 22,920,000 22,916,597 50.9230

3,495 45,002,482 100




Categories of Shareholders
As at 30th June 2015

Particulars Shareholders  Shareholding Percentage
Directors, CEQ B Children 8 202021 0.4500
Associates Companies 2 31,693,507 T0.4250
NIT& ICP 2 1,365,461 3.0342
Banks, DFI & NBF 2 68,260 01517
Insurance Companies 5 218,300 1.8183
Modarabas & Mutual Funds 11 860,317 1.9117
General Public (Local | 3,237 8,611,147 15.1337
General Public (Foreign) 201 267,685 0.5948
Others a7 1,115,789 2.479%4
3,495 45,002,482 100

Shareholding Information

As at 30th June 2015

Categsiies MNo. of Shares Held

Associated Companies, Undertakings & Related Parties

Bibojee Services (Pvt,) Lid. 28,046,417

UD Trucks Corporation Japan 3,647,090
{Formerly Nissan Diesel Motor Co. Ltd. - Japan)

MIT & ICP

CDC - Trustee MNational Investment (unit) Trust 1,358,711

Investment Corporation Of Pakistan 5,750

Directors, CEQ, their Spouses & Minor Children

Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak 62,569
Lt. Gen. (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak 60,070
Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak 69,565
Mr. Mushtag Ahmed Khan 3,805
Mr. Muhammad Zia 512
Choudhry Sher Mohammad 4,000
Mr. Jamil Ahmed Shah 1,000
Mr. Larbi Hbil. 500



Banks, Development Financial Institutions & Non-Banking
Financial Institutions

National Bank of Pakistan

MCB Bank Limited - Treasury

Insurance Companies

Gulf Insurance Company Limited
EFU General Insurance Limited
EFU Life Assurance Ltd

Pak Qiatar Family Takaful Limited

Modarabas & Mutual Funds

The Pakistan Fund

CDC - Trustee NAFA Stock Fund

COC - Trustee NAFA Multi Asset Fund

CDC - Trustee NAFA |slamic Asset Allocation Fund

Pak Asian Fund Limited

CDC - Trustee NAFA Asset Allocation Fund

CDC - Trustee NAFA Pension Fund Equity Sub-Fund Account
CDC - Trustee NAFA Islamic Pension Fund Equity Account
CDC - Trustee NAFA Islamic Principal Protected Fund - |
CDC - Trustee NAFA Islamic Principal Protected Fund - (|
CDC - Trustee NAFA Islamic Stock Fund

Others

Shareholders holding 10% or more
Voting interest in the Company

Shares held

Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Ltd.

1,760
66,500

17,800
50,000
748,500
2,000

5,312
302,000
35,500
130,500
2,000
64,000
40,500
17,000
96,500
28,500
78,500

9,994,621

45,002,482

Percentage

62,32
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors are pleased to present their report together with consolidated financial statements
of Ghandhara Nissan Limited (GNL) and its subsidiary Ghandhara DF (Pwt.) timited for the year
ended 30" June 2015

Thie Company has annexed consolidated finarcal statements alongwith its separate financial
statements in accordance with the reguirements of the International Accounting Standard-27
{Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements)

Ghandhara DF (Pvt.) Limited

Ghandhara DF (Pvt.) Limited (GDFPL) has started commercial production, Keeping in view the
encouraging response from the market coupled with fact that Volvo holds 45% shares of
Dongfeng Commercial Vehicles Limited (DFCV), we anticipate improvements in product qguality.
Diongfeng vehicles therefore will yield substantial revenues 1o your company in days ahead.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak
Chief Executive Officer

Karachi; 16th September 2015



AUDITORS' REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the annewed consolidated financial statements comprising consolidated balance
sheet of Ghandhara Nissan Limited (GNL) and its subsidiary company, Ghandhara OF [Private)
Limited as at June 30, 2015 and the related consolidated profit and loss account, consolidatad cash
flow statement and consolidated statement of changes in equity together with thashotes farming
part thereof, for the year then ended. We have also expressed separate opinion on the financial
statements of GNL The financial statements of the subsidiary company was audited by another firm
of auditors, whose report has been furnished o us and ouropinion, in so far as it refates to the
amounts included for such company, is based solely on the report of such other auditor. These
financial statements are the responsibility of GNL's management. Qur responsibility [s to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Qur audit was conducted in accordance with the Intermational Standards on Auditing and
accordingly included such tests of accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly the financial position of GNL
and its subsidiary company as at June 30, 2015 and the results of their operations for the year then
ended.

HAMEED CHALDHRI & CO., MUNIFF ZIAUDOIN & CO.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Muhammad Ali Muhammad Main Khan

Karachi; 16th September 2015 Karachi; 16th September 2015



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT JUNE 30, 2015

2015 204
ASSETS MNote ~=-- Rupees in 000 ---
hon current adsets
Proparty, plant and eguipmeant 5 1,762,699 1,770,743
Intangible assats 13 BR 118
Lang term investments T 508,761 90,236
Lang term loans -4 i,m 4,864
Long tenm deposits 8 E EB,031
2,754,858 2273602
Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 10 'ﬂ.ﬁﬁ 44,055
Stock-in-1rade 1 B7H,968 717.386
Trade debts 12 375,973 ¥95,583
Loans and advances 11 A, 405 25, 704
Deposits and prepay ments 14 m 15,721
Dther receivables 15 54,284 53,501
Short term investment 16 30,082 38,109
Taxation - net 131,658 Hr.081
Cosh and bank balances 17 351,724 170,942
1,955,123 1,558,622
Total assets 4,249,781 3,832,614
EQLNTY AMD LIABILITIES
Share capltal and reserves
Share capital 18 450,025 450,005
Share pramium 40,000 40,000
Itern credited directly in eguity by an Associate 54,158 61,354
Unappropriated profit TH0,961 312,540
Equuity attributable to shareholders of the Holding Company 1,345,144 264,519
Mon-controlling Interest [ 5
Total equity 1,345,150 864,524
surplus on revaluation of Aixed assets 13 1,403,086 1,410,783
Uabilities
Mon current llabilities
Usbitities agalnst assets subject to finance laase 0 45,635 13,006
Long term deposits 21 9,611 10611
Deferred liakilitias n 111,569 94,795
Deferred taxation 3 269,262 158,039
436,477 XTE 451
Current llabilites
Trade and other payables 24 B9,635 el 381
Bz rued mark-up k] 7,985 5.178
Shor term finances 6 32,259 B BE1
Runnping finances under mark-up arrangements Fe 118,802 54,380
Current portion of liabilites against assets subject to finance leasa 20 11,387 3,656
1,065,068 1,280,456
Total llabdlities 1,500,545 1,556,907
Contingencies and commitments 8
Total equity and llabllites 4,749,781 3,837,614

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an Integral part of these consolidated Anandial statements.

Ahmed Kuli Khan Kh attak Ch. Sher Muhammad
Chief Executive Director



CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution cost
Administrative expenses
Other income

Other expanses

Profit from operations

Finance cost

Share of profit of an Associated Company

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Loss an re-measurement of stalf retirement
penefit obligation

Impact of deferred tax

Total comprehensive income

Attributable to:
- Sharehoiders of the Holding Company
- Nen-controlling interest

Eamings per share - basic and diluted

&

ar

2015 2014
~=- Rupees in "000 ----

5,596,436 2,618,910

(4,448,751)  (2,148,821)
1,147,685 471,089

(s68181"  (19,318)
(170,035) [125,053)
27,240 12,695
[58,348) {19,988}
889,723 319,425
(87.482) (50,218
802,241 268,207
18,525 11,694
820,766 280,901
(283,188) (85,765}
537,578 185,136
(2,061) (3.636)
Loy 1,200
{1,401) 12,436
536,177 182,700
536,176 182,701
1 (1)
536,177 182,700
Rupees
1195 a1

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Ahmed Kuli Khan Ehattak
Chief Exgcutive

Ch, sher Muhammad
Director



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS EROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit belors taxation
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation and amortisation
IAtErest incomae
Finanoe cost
Gain on dispossl of property, piant and equipmient
Exchange ioss
Share of prafit of a0 Associated Company
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences
Amgriization of gein on sale andlease back
of fxed sisets
Operating profit before working capital changes
{Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and logse tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade dabts
Loans and advances
Depos|is and prepaymanis
Othar recsivables

increase in trade and other payabies
Cash generated from operations
Gratuity and compensated absences paid
Long tefm laans - nat
Long teom depasits - net
Finance cost paid
Taxes pald
Nt cash generated from [ [used in} operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fined capital expenditure
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Intarestl income rece ved
Chort tearm investment - net
Loag term deposits - nel
metcash used in investing activides
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Shares subscribed by directors of the Subsidiary Company
Lease finances - net
Shat term finanoes - net
Aunning finances - net
Divldend paid
Mot cash {used in) f generated from financing activities
Het increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents - at Deginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year

The annexed notes from 1to 458 form anintegral part of these consolidated financial stetements.

Ahmed Kull Bhan Khattak
Chilef Exegutive

820,766 280, 501
78,094 54,580
{10,727) {2,183}
TL935 40,235
_A1,290) {568
11,200 5,732
(18,525} {11, 654]
20,027 10,482
4 :
HT1,4A7R 177 ARG
15,119} {11,787
(161,582} {421,916}
19,610 {50,400}
14,7 {8,490)
(26,1249 (1,0a8]
Lasg 128,107
(187,418)  (561.748)
125,083 320,655
‘904,143 136,393
(4,930) {8,079
(1,613) (3,641)
(80,330} {48,833)
[179,575) (93,321)
641,605 {17.481)
(26,745 (14,563)|
5,812 1483 |
8,538 1,450 |
8,017 {28,109} |
18,602} {1323
(12,982 i51.061)

314,268
(125.039)

187456
118914
52528

171,452

Ch_ Sher Muhammad
Director



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CONSOLICATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQULITY

tem
credited
Share  Share  directiyin o OPPT® eyt
capital by by prigted Total controlling
e 'q"“ profit interest
Associate
=t
Rupees in 000
Balance as at July 1, 2013 450,025 A0, 000 61,116 109,777 660,918 =
Transactions with owners
Mon-controlling interest arising on
business coembination - = - i
Total comprehensive income for
the year ended June 30, 2014
Profit { {loss) for the year - - 185,137 185,137 1]
Dther comprehensive loss - - 12.436) {2,436) %
. 182,701 182, 701 [}
Tranifer from surplus on revaluation
of fined assets on acoount of
ineremental depreciztion - net of
deferred tavation . 063 20,062
Effact of itam directly credited
in equity by an Sssocated
Company i 1238 * 1238 =]
Balance as at June 30, M4 450,025 0,000 62,354 312,540 BG4, 010 5
Tramaction with owners
Final dividend for the year ended June 30,
2004 a1 the rate of R3_2.00 per share [20,005) (90, 005) -
Total comprehensive income for
the year ended June 30, 2015
Profit for the year - - 537,577 537517 1
Other comprehensive loss * 5 [1,401) [1.401) -
- 536,176 535176 1
Trarsfer from surplus on revaluation
of fixed assots on account of
incremental depreciation - net of
deferred tagation . ' 32,750 32,350 -
Effect of item directly credited
in equity by an Associated
Company . - 1,804 - 1,804 -
Balance as st June 30, 2015 450005 40000 64,158 790961 144514 [

The annéxed notes from 1 0o 48 form an integral part of these consobidated fnancal statements.

Ahmed K uli Khan Khatak
Chief Executive

Ch. 3her Muhammad
Directar
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
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THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Group consists of Ghandhara Nissan Limited (the Holding Company) and Ghandhars DF
{Private | Limited (the Subsidiary Company)

Ghandhara Nissan Limited

Ghandhara Missan Limited {the Holding Company) was incorparated i.':-:p-ﬁugu;t 8, 1981 in
Pakistan as a private limited company and subsequently converted into a public limited
company on May 24, 1992 The registered office of the Holding Company (5 situated at
Ghandhara House, 109/2 Clifton, Karachi. its manufacturing facilides are located at Port Gasim,
Karachi. The Holding Company's shares are listed on Karachi and lslamabad Stock Exchanges

The principal business of the Holding Company is assembly / progressive manufacturing of
Missan passenger Cars, UD Trucks and Buses, import and marketing of Nissan vehicles, import
and sale of Dongheng Complete Built-up Trucks and assembly of other vehidies under contract
agreement.

Ghandhara DF [Private) Limited

Ghandhara DF {Private] Limited (the Subsidiary Company) was incorporated on lune 25, 2013 in
Pakistan as a private |imited company, The registered office of the Subsidiary Company is
situated ar Ghandhara House, 108/2 Cliften, Karachi. It has outsourced assembly of the vehices
to the Halding Compary

The Subsidiary Company has ccoperation sgreement with Dongfeng Commercial Vehicles
Limited dated December 11 2013 as well as ‘Motor Vehicles & Refated Products Distribution'
agreements with Wuhan DongFeng Foreign Trade Company Limited (a subsidiary company of
DongFeng Automobile Company Limited) dated lanuary 24, 2014,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These consolidated finanoal statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of
such international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and
directives issped under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, In case requirements differ, the
provisions of and directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail,

Principie of consalidation

These consolidated financial statements of the Group include the financial statements of
Holding Compary and of its Subsidiary Company, The Helding Company's direct interest in the
Subsidiary Company 15 99.99% as at June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014

Consolidated financial statements combine like items of assets, Habilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows of the Holding Company with those of its Subsidiary, offset
{eliminate) the carrying amount of the Holding Company's investment in Subsidiary and the
Holding Company's portion of equity of Subsidiary and eliminate in full intragroup assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash Mows relating to transactions between entities of
the Group.

Non-conteolling interest is equity in the Subsidiary Company not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the Helding Company.
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(a)

(b}

Functional and presentation currency

These consalidated financial statements aré presented in Pakistan Rupees which (s the
functional eurrency of the Group and Rigures are rounded off to the niearest thousand of rupees
unless otherwise specified,

Changes in accounting standards and interoretations

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that
are effective p

There are new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the
accounting periods beginming on July 1, 2014 but are considered not ta be reélevant of do not
have any significant effect on the consolidated financial statements and are therefore not
detailed in these consolidated financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

The following are the new standards, amengdments to existing spproved accounting standards
and new interpretations that will be effective for the periods beginning July 1, 2015

IFRS 13 *Fair Value Measurement’, (effective forannual periods beginning on or after lanuary 1,
2015} aims 1o Improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing 3 precise definition of
fair value and 3 single source of fair value measurement and disdosure reguirements for use
acrass IFRSS. The requirements do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other
standards within IFRSs. The Group is yet to assess the full impact of the standard, however,
initial indication is that it is unlikely that standard will have any significant impact on the
Group's finandal statements.

Amendments to IAS 38, Intangible Assets’ and IAS 16, ‘Froperty, Plant and Equipment'
[effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016}, This amendment clarifies
that the use of revenue-based methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset s not
appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that indudes the wse of an asset
generally reflects factors other than the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in
the asset. This has also clarified that revenue it generally presumed to be an inappropriate
basis for measuring the consumption of the economic benefits embaodied in an intangible
asset. The presumption may only be rebutted in certain limited circumstances, These are where
the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue; or where it can be demonstrated
that revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated, These amendments do not have any impact on the Group's financial statements.
Annual improvements 2004 applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.
These amendments include changes from the 2012-2014 cycle of annual improvements project
that affect four stamdards: IFRS 5 'Mon Cumrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Dperations’, IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclasures’, IAS 19 'Employes Benefits), and 145 38,
‘Interim Financial Reporting’. These amendments do not have any fmpact on the Group's
financial statements.
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There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the published
standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Group and therefore, have
not been presented here,

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These consofidated financlal statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain dasses of property, plant and equipment which have been
included at revalued amounts and certain staff retirement benefit which has been recognized
at present value as determined by the Actuary, -

The preparation of consclidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards requires management to make Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting polides and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, Income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis, Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any
future periods affected.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Group's financial
statements or where judgement was exerdised In application of accounting policies are as
follows:

(i) Estimate of useful lives and residual values of property, plant & egquipment and
intangible assets (notes 4.1 and 4.2}

(ii) Stock-in-trade (note 4.5)

(iii} Provision for staff benefits (note 4,10)

{iv) Provision for warranty (note 4.12)

(vl Provision for taxation (note 4.14)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These polices have been consistently applied 1o all the years
presented, unless otherwize stated,

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fined assets
Owned assets

Operating fixed assets except for freehold lang, building on treehold land and plant &
machinery are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.
Freehold land |5 stated at revalued amount and bullding on freehold |and and plant &
machinery are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated deprecation. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable 1o the acquisition of the asset.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent cost are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, anly when [t is probable that future economic benefits assoclated with the item




4.1.2

will flow to the entity and its cost can be reliably measured, Cost incurred to replace a
component of an item of operating fixed assets |5 capitalised and the asset so replaced is
retired from use. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and foss account
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on all tems of operating fixed assets other than freehold land is charged to
income applying the reducing balance method at the rates stated in note 5.1. Depreciation on
additions to operating fined assets is charged from the month in which an assebds acquired or
capitalised while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off.
The depreclatbon method and useful lives of items of operating fixed assets are reviewsed
periodically and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly, Any
change iz accounted for as a change in accounting estimate by changing depreciation charge for
the current and future periods.

Disposzal

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of fived assets are determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amounts of assets and are included in the profit
and loss account,

Revaluation of assets

Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets
does not differ matedally from the fair value. Any surplus on revaluation of fixed assets is
credited to the surplis on revaluation of fixed assets account,

Leased assets

Fixed assets acguired by way of finance lease are stated at an amount equal to the lower of its
fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease less
accumuylated depreciation and impairment losses, iFany.

Impairment

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there (s any indication that operating fixed
assets may be impaired, If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are
reviewed 1o assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where
carrying values excesed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their
recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is taken to profit and loss account
except for impalrment loss on revalued assets, which is adjusted against related revaluation

surplus to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on revaluation
of that asset,

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress |s stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any, All expenditure
connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried
under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are
available for use,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any.
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Cost aisociated with developing or maintaining computer softwane programs arg recognised as
an expense as incurred. Costs that are directly asseciated with identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group and will probably generate sconomic benefits exceeding
costs beyond one year, are recognised as Intangible assets. Direct costs include staff cost, costs
of the software develgpment team and an appropriste portion of relevant overhe ads

Subsequent expenditure

Expenditure which enhance or extend the performance of computer software programs beyond
their original specifications are recognised as capital improvement and added to the original
cost of the software.

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised using the reducing balance method at the rate statedin note &
Investments

Investments In Associated Company

Entities in which the Group has significant influence but not control and which are neither its
subsidiaries nor jolnt ventures are Associates and are accounted for by using equity method of
accounfing.

This investrment is initially recognised at cost, thereafter the carrying amount 15 increased or
decreased to recognice the Group's share of profit or loss of an Associate. Share of post
acquisition profit and loss of an Associate |s accounted in the Group's profit and loss account
Distributicn received from investee reduces the carrying amount of investment. The changes in
Associate's equity which are not to be recognised in the Associate's profit and loss actount, are
recognised directly in the eguity of the Group,

Held to maturity

Held to matirity Investments are non derivative financizl assets with fined or determinable
payments and fixed maturity with a positive intentian and ability ta hold to maturity. They are
induded in non-current assets unless the Investment matures or management intends to
dispose-off it within 12 menths of the end of the reporting date

Subseguent to initial recognition held to maturity investments are carried at amortised cost
using the effective Interest method, Interest en heid to maturity investments is calculated
using the effective interest method and is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Available forsale

Investrrents whiich are intended to be held foran undefined penod of fime but may be soldin
response to the need for liquidity or changes in interest rates are classified as available forsale.
Subseguent to inihal recognition at cost, these are re-measured at tair value, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive income. Gains or losses on available for
sale investments are recognised in other comprehensive incame until the investments are sold
or disposed off, or until the investments are determined to be impaired, at that time
cumulative gain or loss previously reported In other comprehensive income Is included in
current period’s profit and loss account:

Stores, spares and loose tools
Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at the cost which Is based an weighted average cost
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4.8

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10
4.10.1

bess provision for obsolescence, if any. ltems in transit are stated at cost comprising of invoice
value plus other charges thereon accurmulated upto the reporting date,
Stock-in-trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of various classes of stack-in-
trade Is determined as follows

_" 2 T &
=t =

Stock category Valuation method
Complete Knock Down Kits specific cost idenbification g
Complete Bullt-up Units Spedific cost identification
Local raw materials At cost on weighted average basis.
Work-in-process and finished goods At cost which comprises of raw materials,

impart incidentals, direct labour and
appropriate portdon of manufacturing
overheads,
Stock-in-transit At invoice price plus all charges paid
thereon upto the reparting date.
Met realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
costs necessary 1o be incurred in order to make the sale.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts are Initially recognised at orginal involce amount which |s the fair value of
consideration to be received in future and subsequently carried at cost less provision for
doubtful debts, if any. Carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are assessed at each
reporting date and a provision is made for doubtful receivables when collection of the amount
is mo longer probable. Debts considered irrecoverable are written-off,

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for
maturifies outstanding for mare than 12 months as at the reporting date, in which case, they are
tlassified as non-current assets.

Cash and cash equivalants

Cash and cash equivalents are carried inthe balance sheet at cost. Forthe purpose of cash flaw
statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and
other short term highly liquid investments with original maturites of three months or less,
Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings

Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance charges
are accounted for on accrual basis.

Staff benefits - The Holding Company

Defined benefit plan

The Holding Company operates unfunded gratuity scheme which defines the amount of benefit
that an employes will réceive on retirement subject to minimum gualifying period of service
under the scheme. The amount of retirement benefit is usually dependent on one or more




4.10.2

4.10.3

4.11

4.13

414

factors such as age, years of service and salary. Provision for gratuity is made annually to cover
obligation under the scheme in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. Latest
actearial valuation was conducted on June 30, 2015.0n the basis of the projected unit credit
method by an independent Actuary. The liability recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period,

The amount arlsing as a result of re-measurement is recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprahensive infome in the periods in
which they ocour. Past-service cost, if any, are recognised immediately in income.

Defined contribution plan

The Holding Company operates defined contribution plan (i.e. recognised provident fund
scheme) for all its permanent employees. The Holding Company and its employees make equal
mionthly contributions to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary and cost of living
allowance. The assets of the fund are held separately under the control of trusteas.

Employees compensated absences

Employees' entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they agcrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered
by employees upto the reporting date.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at thelr cost which is the fair value of the consideration to
be paid Infuture for goods and services, whether or not billed.

Warranty obligations

The Group recognises the estimated liability, on an accrual basis, to repair parts of trucks under
warranty at the reporting date, and recognises the estimated product warranty costs in profit
and loss account when the sale is recognised.

Product development cost

Product deve lopment cost s charged In the vear in which it is incurred, Develogpment costs
previously charged to income are not recognised as an asset in the subsequent period.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax payable, adjustments, |f any, to
provision for tax made in previous years anising from assessments framed during the year for
sueh years and deferred tax.

Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance
with the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using
prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted.

Deferred

Deferred tax Is accounted for using the balance sheet liability methed In respect of all
temparary differences arising from differences between the carrying amounts.of assets and
liabilities in the consalidared financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
eomputation of the taxahle profit.
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4.16

4.17

4.18

Deferred tax il;b”lﬂ&ﬁ

are generally recognised for all faxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxabile profit shall be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax |osses and tax credits
can be utilised.

Deferred tax is caleulated at the rates that are expecled to apply to the peried when the
differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except in the
case of items credited or charged to equity In which case it is included in Bguity.

Financlal assets and liabilities -

Fnancial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the tme when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and derecognised when the Group lases
control of contractual rights that comprise the financial assets and in the case of financial
liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or ex pired, Any
gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial Labilities |s induded in the
cansolidated profit and lots account for the vear,

Financial instruments carried on the consolidated balance sheetindudes long term |oans, long
term deposits, trade debts, loans & advances, short term deposits, short term investment,
other receivables, cash & bank balances, liabilities against assets subject 10 finance lease, lang
term deposits, trade and ather payables, accrued mark-up, short term finances and FUnning
finances, All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value
of consideration given and received respectively, These financial assets and liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value,. amortised cost or cost as the case may be. The particular
recognition methods adopted are disdosed in the individual palicy statements assadated with
gach item.

Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount s reported In the consalidated
balance sheet when there (4 a legally enforceable right to offset the recaognised amounts and
there is an intention to sertle either on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settls the liabitity
simultaneously.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Pravisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal er constructive obligation as a result of
past event and itis probabile that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
1o settle the obligation and a reiiable estimate of the cbligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate,

‘Contingent assets are not recognised and are also not disdosed unless an inflow of sconamic

benefits (s probable and contingent liabilittes are not recognised and are disclosed uniess the
probability of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits Is remote.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the econamic benefits will flow te
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue It measured at the
fair value of the consideration recelved or receivable ard is reduced for allowances such as
taxes, sales returns and commission, Revenue from different sources is recognised on the
following basis:
Trading
Vehicles are treated a5 sold when invoiced and delivered. Commission Income is
recognised on the basis of shipment,




GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED
- Spare partsaiesare recorded on the basis of dispatches made to the customears
Manufacturing
- ehides are treated as sold when invaiced and dispatched 1o CUs1OMmers.
Other

Return an bank depositsis accounted foron atcrual basis

4.19 Borrowlng cost
Borrowing costs directly attnibutable to the acqulsinign, constraction of production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necassarily taki a substantial period of trme sshget ready farthair
Intended uie are sdded to the cost of those assets, ondl such time. ac the a5l are
substantially ready for thelr intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to (neome in
the peried in which theyare Tncurred,

4.20 Foreign currency transiation
Transachions in torsign Uirencies e transiated into reporbng currency at the rates of
exchange prevalling on the date of transactions. Menetary assets and liabllities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into reporting curfency equivalents using year end foreign
exchange rFates. Mon monetary 3ssets and liabilities are translated using exchange rate Thal
existed when the values were determined. Exchange differences on forgign currency
translations are taken to consolidated profit.and loss account cumrently.

421  Impairment loss
The carrying amounts of the Group's assets are reviewed at each repoting date to identify
clrcumstances indicating ccourrence of impairment lass or reversal of provisions for Imipairment
josses. If any Indicadons exist, the recoverable amounts of such disets are estimated and
impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognisad in the consolidazed profit
and lass socount. Reversal of impairment loss |s restricted tothe original costof the asset

432 Eegment reporting
Segment information |5 presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting
purpases by the Chief Operating Decizion Maker, who is. responsible for allocanng resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, On the basis of its Intemal reporting
structure, the Group considers itseif to be a single reportable segment.

4,23 Eamings pershare
The Group presents Basicand diluted earnings per share (EP5) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
£PS Is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributabie to ordinary sharehciders of the
Holding Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
peniod.

4.24 Dividend and appropriation to rescrves
Dividend and other appropriations to reserves are recognised in the period in which they are

approved,
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQLHFMENT 2015 2014
Note ===+= Rupees in '000 —--
Operating fixed assets 51 1,762,699 1,759,365
Capital work-in-progress - 11,378

1,762,699 1,770,743
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5.2 Freehold land, buildifigs on freehold land and plant & machinery of the Holding Company had
previously been revalued on June 30, 1997, lune 30, 1999, January 1, 2004 and June 30, 2009,
The Holding Company as on lune 30, 2014 again revalued its freehold land, buildings on
freehold land, plant & machinery and assembly jigs. The revaluation exercise was carried out by
independent valuer - Harvester Services (Pvt.) Ltd., (Approved valuers of Pakistan Banks'
Assaclation and Leasing Association of Pakistan) | |. Chundrigar Road, Karachi. Freehold land
was revalued an the basis of current market price whereas buildings on freehold land, plant &
machinery and assembly jigs were revalued on the basis of depreciated market value. The
appraisal surplus arisen on latest revaluation exercise aggregating Rs 468 255 million has been
incorporated in the books in accordance with the provisions of section 235 of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984,

53 Had the-operating fixed assets been recognised under the cost model, the carrying amount of
each revalued class of operating fived assets wauld have been as follows:

2015 2014
Mote --—- Rupees in '000 -----
Freehold land 61,456 61,456
Buildings on freehald land 121,299 127,683
Plant and machinery 140,297 135,395
assembly Hgs 3,535 2,793
5.4 Depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:
Cost of goods manufactured 30.1 69,131 51,422
Administrative expenses 32 B,933 3,118
55 The details of operating fixed assets disposed-off are as follows:
AT - ) o
Particularof Iated "::L Sals {Loas) | “:‘ Particular of
ansets deprecs il proces s gain di i LT T
lathen 3 i
e e Rupees in '000 se=sascecaaaaaae
Ve hicles
Sizukl At 540 37E 131 L1 (66) Group policy e Arshad  blinlas
{employes}
Suzukl hMehran 485 284 201 B (105) Group policy N, Cramim [wra=
el oy e
Bkl Mashran 11 17 2014 e (i08) Grouppolicy M. Babar  Hussein
e oy e )
Suzuki Mehran 4 S0E 182 aF (85} Group policy MY BEhalid mmail Khan
Carm ooy )
Misaan Sunny 11256 B0 1ar B3 st Pesgatiztion P Shafoat 00, Lahore
Plimman Surmy 1.045 and 19 B03 502 Meotiztion R Satdar All, Harashi
Missan Sunny BE0 B8BTS BS 100 15 Hegotiston M. Pubeadik Cihailar
s, Bakhar
Honda Citl 1,200 446 754 Bon 164 Group pelicy  Mr.  Hasaan  Ahmed
Tarky (ex-employoees)
Suzuki Balarn 560 SEg 1 410 A0 PEgOTaon ir. Arshod, Ildlir,
Kormahi
Suzruki Bolan S04 321 283 LTl 18¥ insurance claim EFLU Ganeral g urance
Limited, Karachi
SuFmubkl Cultius 896 S g2 178 (183} Gronipy prodicy P BlubaEmumasd  Acsamie
(mmpioyea)
Chiwralat Sa0 B85 74 oo (14} Group pollcy B Muhammad  Asir
(e phovsaa)
Buzukl Cutus 1,038 188 as1 216 [=te) Group policy P, Zahmar-ud-din
(e ployee)
e 30, 2018 10,018 B, 555 A,453 4,753 1,200

Jume 30, 2014 3.088 2473 15 1. 483 ]
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7.1

The Holding Company's present and future land, buildings on freehold fand and plant &
machinery are under morgaged / hypothecated charged upto Rs 1,647 milllon [2014: Rs_ 1,647
millHon) with banks for short term finance facilites.

Capital work-in-progress
Machinery
Advance payments against vehices

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

These represent computer software licensas.

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
At baginning of the year
Add: charge for the year
Atend of the year

Net book value

Rate of amortisation (% - per annwm)

LOMNG TERM INVESTMENTS

Associated Company

Ghandhara Industries Limited - Equity basis

5,166, 168 (2014 5,166, 168) ordinary shares
of As, 10 each
Equity held: 24, 25% | 2014: 24.25%)

Cost
Share of post acquisition profit / (losses)

Share of items directly credited In the
equity of Assoclated Company

Share of surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets of Associated Company

Dividend received to date

Others - available for sale

Automotive Testing & Tralning Center
(Private) Limited

187, 500 { 2014; 187, 500) ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each - cost

Provision for impalrment

2015

2014

===~ Rupees in 000 -----

6,705
4,673

" 11378

342

3g2

118

wlells 8| 8§

25

356,595
115,499

BRS¢ Biss

430,235

1,875
(1,875)

B

490,236

The abowve figures are based on unaudited condensed interim financial information of the
Investee company as at March 31, 2014, The |atest financial statements of the investes company

as at June 30 2015 are not presently available.



summarised financial Informaton of the investes company as at March 31, 2015 is as follows:

Az at March As-at March
31, 2015 31, 2014
-— Rupeas in "000 ---
Total pasets 3,493,133 &, 030,286
Tatal liabilities 1,4405, 9590 4,011,546
Accumulated profit 204,65 120,817
Mine months period ended
March 31, Warch 31,
2015 014
--- Rupees in "DOG ---
Revenuses 1,987,005 1,657.921
Profit before takation 87,361 9,807
Profit after taxation 66,932 13,170

The market value of lnvestment as at June 30, 3015 way Rz 367,988 millon [2014: Rs, 173,945
millian).

LONG TERM LOANS - Unsecured 015 14
considered pood Note <~——Rupees |n "000 ——
Loans to employees - other than axecutive 8.1 1.857 6,258
Amounts recoverable within ong year and
grouped under CUFrent assets {1,4980) (1,354
5,77 4,854

These represent interest free loans provided to employess as per terms of emplaoyment Tor

varlous purposes. These loans are repayable on monthly instalments, which varies from cse to

£ase.

LOMNG TERM DEPOSITS - Unisecured 2015 2034
considered good weeer Rup@es in 000 —-—

Depaosits held with [ againsg:

- Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 25 5
- lease Facilities 10,334 1,732
utilities 6174 E174
- gthers ‘100 100
16,633 8,031

STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Storas 50,055 43,940
Spares and loose tools 115 115
50,174 a4, 0155
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GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED
1L STOCK-IN-TRADE 2015 2014
Mate =e=+ Rupees in "000 -----
Raw materials
- in hand 364,145 355, 455
« I transit 371,509 302,388
735,653 657,843
Finished goods
- in hand |
Vehldes - Trucks / Buses 46,872 y i 15,593
Spare parts 47,924 I 12,246
|
- Held with third parties
Viehicles - Trucks 49,218
= Iniransit
Complete Built-up Units - Trodks 14,300 | 31004 |
158,314 59,543
Less: provision for obsalete / slow moving stock {15,000)
143,314 55,543
B78,968 717,385

11:1 The present and future stock-in-trade, trade debts and receivables aggregating As. L 715 million
(2004: A5, 1715 million} of the Holding Company are under pledge / joint hypothecation charge
with banks against short term finances and running finances

12 TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured 2015 04
conyidered good MNate -eoe Rupeesin '000 -—--
Yehidesand assembly charges 12.1 373,543 393,093
Spare parts 2,430 7,480
375,973 395,583

12,1  Trade debts include the following amounts
due from related parties:

Ghandhara Industries Limited 34,413 91,117
Gammon Pakistan Limited 3
Rehman Cotton Mills Limited - E
34,416 91,122
12.2 The ageing of the trade debts receivable from Associated Companies s at the reporting date
are as follows:
2015 014
i Hupge; In 000 -----
Ug to 3 months 9,413 54,013
3toc 5 manths - 37.109

9,413 91,122
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13.2

LOAMNS AND ADVAMNCES - Unsecured 2015 204

considered good Hote eses Rupees in 000 -
Current portion of long term loans 8 1,480 1,394
Lomrys te:
- executives 1318132 890 1,910
- other employees 13.1 y 1,070 Irs
1,960 2,285
Advances to:
- executives Iﬁ- 254
-athér employees 1,..* 1,785
~suppliers; contractors and others 134 26,677 19,986
30,489 22,025
Letters of credit 6,476 -
40,405 25,704

These represent interest free general loans and special loans provided to emplovess in
accordance with Group's policy and have maturities upto twelve months,

Reconciliation of carrying amount of 2015 2014
loans to executives --- Rupées in "000 ---
Balance at beginning of the year 1,510 &
Disbursements - 2,764
].,m 2,764
Repayments (1.020) (B854
Balance at end of the year §90 1.810

The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at the end of any month during the year ended
June 30, 2015 from executives aggregated to Rs.1.825 million | 2014: As. 2,095 millian),

Includes &s,2.102 million [2014: Rs.Nil} advanced to The General Tyre and Rubber Company of
Pakistan Limited - an Associated Company for purchase of tyres,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 2015 2014
===s= Rupees in '000 -—--
Deposits 5,410 240
Prepaid :
- rent [Bibojes Services (Private) Limited -
the Littimate Holding Company| 3,718 9,118
- athers 1,085 4,948
4,813 14,066
Current account balances with statutory authorities 31,622 1,215
41,845 15,721
OTHER RECEIVABLES - Considered good
Sales tax refundable / adjustable 23,535 36,128
Bank guarantee margin B, 186 613
Letters of credit margin 4,427 -
Security deposits and earnest money 15,186 13,472
Accrued Interest 2,815 624
Others 135 2,747

m 5-35591
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7.3

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT - Held to maturity

This represents investment in & Term Deposit Receipts (TDR) having face wvalue of Rs.30.00
million {2014; Rs.38.00 million) placed with National Bank of Pakistan for a term of 120 days
(2014: 120} days. This TOR carries mark-up at the rate of 6.20% (2014: 7%) per annum and |s

maturing on October 100 2015,

2015 2014
CASH MK BALANCES ;
R Mote === Rupees in 000 -----
Cash in hand 1 ;.
Cath at banks on; e
- current agcounts 108,718 111,055
- deposit accounts 17.1 9,917 10,758
- 1erm deposits receipts 17.2 237,000 54,000
355,635 175,353
Prowision for doubtful bank balance 17.3 ﬂ,ﬁ.‘ﬂ {3,912}
351,723 171,441
351,724 171,442

These, duning the year, carry mark-up at the rate of 9.00% | 2004; at the rates ranged from 5.20%
and 9.00%] per annum,

Term deposit receipts (TORS) have maturity days ranging from sixty to one hundred twenty days
from respective dates of acguisition. These TDRS carry mark-up at rates ranging from 6.00% to
T.400% (2014: 7.005 to 8.50%) per annum.

This represents provision mace against bank balance held with Indus Baak Limited whose
operations were ceased by the State Bank of Paklstan and is under liguidation. The above
balance is net of As. 42586 milllon depasited in the deposit account and margin account against
four letters of credit due in May and June 2000. Despite full payments and several reminders,
the payment of above letters of credit has not been made to the supplier af goads. The Group
considers that it has discharged itz abligation against the said letters of credit.

SHARE CAPITAL 2015 204
o RUPEES N D00 -
Author red capital

80,000,000 ( 2014: B30,000,000) ordinary shares of
Rs.10each 800,000 200,000

Issued, subscribed and pald-up capital
2015 2014
== No. of shares -
14,800,000 14,800,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 sach

. fully pasd in cash 148,000 148,000
200,000 200,000 ﬂrulrmryﬂi‘ﬂ'ﬂnd‘_ﬁl.m“ch
msued as fully paid
bonus shares 2,000 2,000
30,002,500 30,002.500 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
issued for acquisition 300,025 300,025
45,002,500 45002500 450,025 450,025

Bibojee Services (Private) Limited (the Uitimate Holding Company) holds 62.32% (2014: 62 37%)
of issued, subscribed and paid-up capital.
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Ordinary shares held by related parties other than
the Ultdmate Holding Company as at year end:

Univertal Insurance Company Limited

U0 Trucks Corporation, Japan

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF
FIMED ASSETS - Net Note

Surplus on revaluation of the Holding
Company's fixed assets 18.1

Share af surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets of an Assoclated Compary 7

Surplus on revalustion of the Holding
Company's fixed assets

Balance at beginning of the year

Surplus arisen on revaluanon carried-out
during the preceding year

Transferred to unappropriated profit on
account of Incremental depregiation for the year

Less: related deferred tax of:
- apening balance
- surplus arlisen during the preceding year
- incremental depreciation for the year
- ptfect of change in tax rate
- closing balance

Balance at end of the year

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT
TO FINAMCE LEASE

Balance at beginning of the year
Assets pcguired during the year

fepaid / adjusted during the year

Current portion grouped under currént liabilities

Balance at end of the year

015

2014
-» Number of shares -

& 5,000
3,647,090 3,647,090
3,847,090 3,652,020

2015 2014
e Redpees in "000 -
m 1,054, 188

354,791 356,585

1,403,086 1,410,783
B L ol

1,357,938 919,990
. 68,345
146,071) 130,397}
1,311,867 1,357,938
303,750 208,701
- 113,158
(13,821) {10,335}
(26,357) {5.775)
263,572 303,750

1,048,295 1,054,188

16,662 1,280
ﬂ...?ﬂ' 17,315
(7.417) (1,913}
57,002 16,662
{12,387) {3,656)
45,635 13,006
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These represent vehides acquired under finance fease / diminishing musharakah arrangements
from warious financial institutions. Rentals are payable on monthly basis, Thase finance
facilittes, during the year, were subject to finance cost at the rates ranged from 11% to 17.50%
{2014 15.22% to 17.32%) per annum. These facilities are secured against title of the leased
wehicles in the name of lessor. The Group intends to exercise its option to purchase the leased
vehldes upon completion of the lease terms,

The future minimum lease payments to which the Group Is" committed under the agree ments
will be due as follows:

Upto  Fromone Upto  Fronvone
Particulars ane to five 2015 one to five 2014
year years year years
Rupees in "000

hnimum lease payments 16,513 52,520 69,033 5,685 15,582 21287
Finance cost allocated to

future pericds (5.126)  (6,885) (12.011) (2.039) (2.586) (4.625)
Present value of minimum
lease payments 11,387 45635 57,022 3656 130068 16662
LOMNG TERM DEPOSITS X015 2014
Mote e RUPEES I 000 -
Dealers' deposit ni 9,000 10,000
Vendors 111 111
Others 500 S00
9,611 10,611
These deposits are interest free and are not refundable during subsistence of dealership,
DEFERRED LIABILITIES 2018 a3
Mote wwems RUpEES in "000 ===
Prowision for gratuity 2.1 83,370 70,404
Provision for compensated absences 28,583 24,391
Gain on sale and lease back of fixed assets .2 16 .
111,969 94,795
Provision for gratuity

The Holding Comparny's cbligation as per the latest actuarial valuation in respect of defined
benefit gratuity plan is as follows:

Amount recognised in the consolidated 2015 2014
balance sheet is as follows e o= Rutpees in 000 -----

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Benefits payable

80,791

2,579

Liability at end of the year 83,370
Liability at beginning of the year 70,804 61,068

14,020

2,061

(3,115}

83,370

Charge to profit and loss account

Re-measurement recognised in
other comprehensive income

Payments made during the year

Liability at end of the year
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22.1.7

22,18

2004

Mowement in the present value - Rupees In "000 <<
of defined benefit obligation

Balance at beginning of the year 70,356 &0, Bas
Current service cost 5,072 4.333
Interest cost ; ﬁ.m 6,149
Benefits paid (3,115) (4.657)
Benefits due but not paid (2,531 -
Re-measurement on obligation ‘2,061 3,636
Balance st end of the year 80,791 70,356

Expense recognised in consolidated profit
and loss account

Current service cost 5,072 4,233
Interest cost I.'“ 6,149
14,020 10,482

Re-measurement recognised in
other comprehensive income

Experience adjustments 2,061 3,636
2015 2014
Actuarial assumptions used === % PET aTUM -
Discount rate 9,75 13.25
Expected rate of increase in future salaries 9.75 13.25
nortality rates (for death in aervice) - SLiC SLIC
2001- 2005 200%- 2005

Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes In principal assumptions is .

Impact on define benefit obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assum- assumption assumpticn
ption - Rupees in '000 ---
Discount rate 1.00% 74,591 86,011
Increase in future salaries 1.00% 86,021 74,585

The sensitivity analysis aré based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is wnlikely to occur, and change in some of the
sssumptions may be correlated, When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actusrisl assumptions the same method (present value of defined
penefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of reporting
perad) has been applied as when calculating the gratuity (iability recogrised within the
consolidated balance sheat,

The methods and types of assumptions used In preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change
compared to the previous period.

Based on actuary's advice, the expected charge to profit and |oss account for the year ending
June 30, 2016 amounts to Rs. 12.828 million.

The weighted average duration of the scheme is Tyears.
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Historical information 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Rupses in '000

Pressnt vaslus of deflnsd

[ SR —— 80.791 70,356 0,808 4B EAL A TER
Experisnces acdpestrment
o obdigaticn 2.081 3838 4,872 4. 708 [CH-RETY
Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit plan:
Lass
Batween | Betwesn Owver §
I:::r- 1-2 yaars || 2-5 years Yyears Total

Rupees in "000 =

As at June 30, 2015 8,827 3468 2333F 44T 680 484 319
Galn on sale and lease back of fixed asseis

The Holding Company has entered inte a sale and lease back transaction during the year which

rasults in finance lease. The excess of sale proteeds over the net book value of vehicle under
sale and lease back arrangement has been recognised as deferred income and is amortized over

the period of leage term.
2015 2014
DEFERRED TAMATION - Nt Note -~ Rupees In '000 ----

The liakility for deferred taxation comprises of
temporary differences relating to:

- accelerated tax depreciation allowancg 50,599 50,806
- surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 263,572 303,750
- lease finances a7 821
- provision for gratuity (25,845) {23, 5584)
= pravision for compensated absences (8,8861) (8.531)
- pravision for warranty claims (4, 226) -
- provision for obsolete / slow moving stock (4,800) -
- provision for bank balances (1,174) {1.291)
- mifnimum tax renwe-rahle llN nst
normal tax charge in future years - {75,912)
- gxcess of alternative corporate tax over
corporate taxes recoverable in future years - {17.946)
= pnused tax losses - {70,074}
269,262 158,033
TRADE AND OTHER PAY ABLES
Trade creditars 75,773 85,198
Bills pavable 322,476 241,038
Accrued liabilites a1 50,725 20,376
Refundable - CKD / CBU business 1,403 1,403
Customers' credit balances. 24.2 242,999 288 616
Commission 7,604 17.918
Unclaimed gratuity 231 231
Dealers' deposits against vehicles m 52,800
Custom duties payable - 2,263
Due to related parties 233 30,339 21,894
Withhalding tax 5,809 1,214
Woarkers' profit participation fund 24.4 42,281 14,484
Workers' welfare fund 21,579 5,512
Retention money _ 3 103
Unclaimed dividend 2,132 961
Warranty claims H,.m -
Others 558 256 23,574 13,370
894,635 768,381




Includes Rs.20. 173 million { 2014: Rs.13.704 million) which pertains to & key management person.

These represent advances from customers against sale of trucks and carry no mark-up.

2015 2014
Due to related parties Note e Rupees in 000 ---—
Bibojee Services [Private) Limited 120 4
UD Trucks Corporation - lapan 10,334 7.676.
Universal Insurance Company Limited e 3,958
Rehman Cotton Mills Limited 10,000
The General Tyre and Rubber Company
of Pakistan Limited - 3
Gammen Pakistan Limited - 37z
wagf-e-Kull Khan 5,885 5,885
30,339 21,884
Waorkers' profit participation fund
Balance at beginning of the year 14,484 952
Allocation far the year 34 42,281 14,484
Interest on funds utilised in the
Holding Company’s business a5 1,631 a7
58,396 15,533
Payment made during the year {18,115) {1,049
Balance at end of the year 42,281 14,484

Includes Rs.2.479 million {2014 R5.3.675 million) which pertain o key management parsonnel,

includes deposits and Ipstallments under the Holding Company's staff vehicle policy
aggregating Rs.5.083 million (2014: Rs.2.654 milllon] and Rs.0.104 million surcharge on salas tax.

ACCRUED MARK-UP 2015 2014
MNote we=ee Rup@es in 000 ---—
Mark-up accrued on:
- shiort term finances 5BE 2,973
- running finances Tam 2,205
7,985 5,178
SHORT TERM FINANCES - Secured )
Finance against trust recelpts
- Mational Bank of Pakistan 26.1 - 225,743
Finsnce againstimported merchandizse
- The Bank of Khyber 6.2 L] 181,243
Short term demand finance
- Faysal Bank Limited 5.3 32,259 41873
32259 448,861
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Against Trust Receipts (FATR) facilivies of an aggregate |imit of Rs.500 million (2014 : Rs 500
million) from Mational Bank of Pakistan. These faciiities are secured against efective pledge of
imported  goods, duly signed trust receipts and cumulative charge (equitable and
hypothecation) over the Holding Company's land;, building and plant & machinery. These
facilities carry mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 200 basis peints, FibM and FATR are
repayable within 120 days of disbursement / creation. Théte Bnance Ffacilities are available
upto October 31, 2015.

The Holding Company has also arranged FIM of Bs.250 million {2014: Rs. 250 million) from the
Bank of Khyber. This finance faclity s secured against effective pledgey of imported
consignments, first pari passu charge over fand along with buildings and plant & machinery upto
Rs.24 million and hypothecation charge over all present and future stocks & books debts upto
Rs.500 million. This facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 300 basis points.
FiMl is adjustable within 120 days of disbursernent [ creation. This irance Facility is available up
to December 31, 2015,

The Holding Company had arranged short term loan of Rs.330 million from Faysal Bank Lmited
(the Bank) against outstanding Import bills, Originally this |oan was répayable in monthly
instalments of Rs.22 million each. The Holding Company during the prior years had repaid
instalments aggregating Rs.215 million and balance of Rs.115 million was renswed by the Bank,
The Helding Company has made principal payments of Rs.82. 741 million tll June 30, 2015 of this
renewed finance facility. Balance of this finance facility, during the year, has been again
renewed by the Bank. This facility is secured against first parl passu charge of Rs.367 million on
stocks and receivabies, ranking charge of Rs.434 million over stocks & receivables and ranking
charges of As400 million on plant and machinery of the Halding Company, The short term loan
carries mark-up at the rate of six months KIBOR plus 1.80% per annum.

RUMNNING FIMANCES UNDER MARK-UP 2015 014
ARRANGEMENTS - Secured Note comee Rupees in 000 -
Balance as at june 30, 71 118,802 54,380

Running finance facilities available to the Holding Company from commercial banks under mark:
up arrangements aggregate to Rs. 375 million (2014 Rs.375 million) and are secured by way of
equitable, hypothecation and pari passu charge over fixed and current assets of the Holding
Company. These, during the current financial year, carry mark-up &t the rates ranging from
9.79% to 12.21% (2014: 11.06% to 12.17%) per annum. The arrangements are expiring on March
31, 2016.

The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees a3 at June 30, 2015 aggregated to
Rs. 1,577 million {2014: Rs. 1,562 million) of which the amount remained unutilised at the year-
end was Bs, 891,344 million (2015 Rs, 774,362 million).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Certain cases have been filed against the Holding Company in respect of employees matters,
These cases are pending in labour courts, high court and before National Industrial Relatons
Commission, Karachi. The management |z confident that the outcome of these cases will be In
the Holding Company's favour,

Commitment in respect of irrevocable letters of credit as at June 30, 2015 aggregate to
Rs.714.432 million { 2014; Rs.813. 560 milllon).

Guarantees aggregating Rs.20.047 million (2014: Rs.10.303 million] are issued by banks of the
Holding Company to various government and other insttutions.



REVENUE - Net
Mote

Manulactured activity
Local
Export
Less:

- gales tax

- commission
Trading activity
Local
Enport
Less:

- Salas tax

- discount and cormmission
COST OF SALES
Finished goods at beginning of the year
Cost of goods manufactured 30.1
Purchases - trading goods
Finished goods at end of the year 11
Cost of goods manufactured
Werk in process at beglnning of the year
Raw materials and parts consumed .z
Fabrication of contract vehides
Stores and spares consumed
Provision for obsolete / slow moving stock
Salaries, wages and benefits 30.3
Transportation
Repair and maintenance
Depreciation 5.4
Material handling
Insurance
Cammunication

Rent, rates and taxes

Travelling and entertainment

Power generation costs

Printing, stationery and office supplies
Royalty expense

Product upgradation charges

Plant security

Product development cost

Other manufacturing expenses

015 2014
-eee RUPEES in "000 -----
6,072,436 2,770,408

- 30,965
6,072,446 2,801,371
882,910 402,538 |
79,239 39,850
962, 442 388
5,110,297 2,358,983
573,454 317,524 !
1,380 2,902
574,214 320,426
£83,414 46,175
5,261 13,324
BB,E7S 59,499
486,132 260,927
5,596,436 2,619,910
59,543 53,856
4,026,475 1,905, 707
506, 046 248,301
4,532 532 2,154,508
{143,314) [59,543)
4,448,751 2,148,821
- 24,320
3,573,881 1,597,503
17,125 7,881
51,368 27,908
15,000 -
142,555 114,548
8291 9,208
19,744 7,883
65,131 51,422
7,350 1,160
4,059 3,492
524 ATE
15,056 414
952 64
52,736 47,100
8237 510
15,420 0,489
8,700 -
5488 4,698
5,075 .
3,148 1,641
4,026,476 1,908,707
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Raw materials and parts consurmed L Rupees in 000 -----
Stocks ot beginning of the year ‘355,455 48,727
Purchases 3,582,571 1,904,231
3,938,026 1,952,358
Stocks at end of the year | 364,145) (355,455)

3,573,881 1,557,503
Salaries, wages and benefits indude Rs.4.681 milllon {2014: Rs.3.160 millioed and Rs 2.528
million {2014: As.2.327 million) in respect of stalf retirement gratuity and staff provident fund

respectively.

2015 014
S L MNote ==== Rupees in 000 <«
Salaries and benefits 3.1 m 13,037
Litilities 89 208
Rent of showroom M .
Insurance o -
Repair and malntenance ars Fia
Travelling and entertainment 7,433 2,627
Telephone and postage 135 148
Vehitle running 448 Tad
Printing, stationery and office supplies a0 287
Security m 511
Wamranty tenvices 13,600 i
Godewn and forwarding 443 81
Sales promotion expenses ﬂ 1,129
Others az7 276
56,819 19,318

Salaries and benefits include Rs.0017E million { 2014; Rs.0.167 million} and Rs.0.867 million {2014
Rs.0.823 million) in respect of staff rerirement gratuity and staff provident fund respectively.

2015 2014

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES ki i T
Salaries and bensfits 21 113,123 86,605
Pre-incorporation expenses e 323
Urilities 4,345 &, 53T
Rent, rates and taxes 10,087 7.627
Directors’ fee Tz 450
Insurance 2,530 £52
Repairs and maintenance 2,565 1,505
Depreciation and amortisation 5486 8,963 1,158
Auditors’ remuneration 31.2 m 586
Advertising a3 ara
Travelling and conveyance 3,278 3,336
Legal and professional charges 4841 1,204
Wehicle running 2,926 3,193
Telephone and postage w 3,058
Printing and stationery 4,040 2,773
Subseription :m 1,554
Security expenses w 8BTS
Donation 123 150 415
Others 3,43 2,374

TR




Salaries and benefits indude Rs 9,167 million [2014: #s.7.155 million) and Bs.2.064 million {2014

Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee
Hameed Chaudhr & Co.
Muniff Jiauddin & Co.
Junaidy Shoaib Asad

Rs.1.831 million) in respecy of staff retirament gratuity and staff provident fund respectively

2015

2014

=e=e= RUpees in 000 -

HER R

Blw ¥ B

MNane of the directors or their spouses had any interest in the donees.

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Interest income

Income fram non-financial assets

Scrap sales - net of sales tax

Gainon disposal of property, plant and equipmen

Amortization of gain on sale and lease back
of fixed assets

Commission income
Others

MNate

331

55

015

2014

- Rupees in "000 -

10,727 2,183
4,128 3,921
:..m cen
g =
6579 5,254
4512 769
16,513 10,512
27,240 12,695

Interest at the rates ranged from 6.00% to 8.50% (2014: 7.00% to 0.00%] per annum has been
earned during the vear on term deposit receipts and deposit accounts.,

OTHER EXPENSES

‘Warkers' profit participation fund
Weorkers' welfare fund

FINANCE COST
Mark-up on:
- short term finances
- running finances
Lease fimance charges
Exchange loss - net
Interest on workers' profit parficipation fund
Bank and other charges

Mote
244

2015 204

w=see RUpees in D00 -
47,281 14,484
16,067 5,504
58,348 13,988
35,688 16,920
30,885 22,575
3R €53
11,202 5,733
L6321 &7
4,345 4,250
87,482 50,218



36. TAXATION 2015
=== Rupees in "000 —---

2014

Current
< for the yaar 144,948 44,684
- for prior year - (64)
144,948 44,920
Defermed
< origination and reversal of temporary differences 168,483 46,251
- Impact of change in tax rate [.'ﬂﬂ] 4,554
138,240 50,845
283,188 95,765
June 30,
361 Relationship between Income tax expense 2015
and accounting profit Rs in "000

Met profit before taxation
Tax at the applicabie income tax rate of 33%

Tax effect of expenses, which are not deductible for tax
purposes and are taken to profit and loss sccount

Tax effect of expenses, which are deduchble for tax
purposes but are not taken to profit and loss account

T
270,853
36,334
(19,128)
Effect of tax crodits 195,175)
Tax effect of unused tax losses (70,074}
Tax effect of income subject to final tax regime {1,831)
Super tax for rehabilitation of tempaorarily displaced persons 18,989
Ceferred taxation 138,240
183,188

36.1.1 No numeric tax rate reconcilistion for the preceding year is given in the consolidated finandial
statements as provision made during the preceding year mainly represents alternate corporate
tax payable under section 113C and final tax deducted under section 154 Income Tax Ordinance,

2001 (the Ordinance).

362 Section 54 of the Ordinance imposes tax at the rate of ten percent on every public company
other than a scheduled bank or medaraba, that derives profits for tax year but does not
distribute cash dividend within six months of the end of said tax year or distribute dividends ta
such an extent that It's reserves, after such distribution, are In excess of 100% of its paid up
capital. Howewver, this tax on undistributed reserves is not applicable to a public company which
distributes profit equal to either 40% of its after tax profits or S0% of s issued, subscribed and

paid up capital, whicheveris less, within six months of the end of the tax year.

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company intheir meeting held on September 16, 2015 has
distributed sufficlent cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2015 (refer note 46) which
complies with the above stated requirements. Accordingly, no provision for tax on
undistributed reserves has been recognised in the Holding Company's financial statements far

the year ended June 30, 2015,
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EARNINGS PER SHARE 2015 014
e RUipERS 0 "000 -

Basic earnings per share

et profit for the year 5:_1& 185,137
-- Number of shares --

Weighted average ordinary shares in jssue m 45,002, 500
P ;’mp.“ ...... <

Earnings per share 1195 411

Diluted eamings per share

Mo figures for diluted eamings per share has been presented as the Group has not issued any
imstruments carrying options which would have an impact on garnings per share when

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

2015 2014
Chiaf . Chief - )
Executi Director Executives E ; Director Exscutives
Rupees in 000

Managerial remuneration 9,000 3,600 52,761 9000 3800 37351
Contribution to provident

fund 456 . 2154 456 . 1,664
Gratuity 228 - 1,700 228 : 1,263
Uilities - 2,403 . - 2,845

9684 3,600 59,018 0884 3,600 42,953
Mumber of persons =D ' 1 30 1 1 23

Mo remuneration has been paid or is paysble by the Subsidiary Company on account of
remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives forthe year,

The Chief Executive of the Holding Company is also entitled for the use of the Company
maintained car, security expenses, telephone expanses and medical expenses at actual, He is
also entitled to receive other benefits as per the Haolding Company palicy applicable to all
management emplayees,

Diractor and certsin Executives of the Holding Company are also provided with free use of the
Company maintained vehices.

Aggregate amount charged in the consalidated financial statements for meeting hee to
Directors of the Holding Company and Subsidiary Company was Rs. 0. 737 million {2014: fs 0450
millian}.

TRANSACTIONS WiTH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of the Ultimate Holding Company, Assoclated Companies, directors of
the Group, companies in which directors are |ntgrested, staff retirement benefit pian, key
management personnel and close members of the families of the directors & key management
personnal, The Group |n the narmal course of business carries oul transactions with various
ralated parties. Amounts due from and to related parmes are shown under receivables and
payables, Significant transactions with refated parties are as follows:



Natura of

transaction «== Rupees in ‘000 ---
(i} Uitimate Heolding Company
Bibojes Services Rent 17.520 5,400
{Private) Limibed Drivachand 56,093 -
{ii} Associated Companies 2
Universal Insurancae _
Company Lirmited INSurancE premium ‘lM 250
The General Tyre and Purchase of tyres, ubes
Rubber Company of and fllaps 73,354 38,623
Pakistan Limited Sale of parts - &9
Ghandhara Industries Contract aszembly 88,218 117,267
Limited Fabrication of vehicles 7,000 1.241
Purchase of vehicke 2,250 -
Expense raimbursement 180 -
Sale of fleet vehicles - 566
Rehman Cotton Mils Purchase of plant & machiner, 10,000 -
Limited Sale of parts - 5
Gammon Pakdstan Office rant 1,500 1.500
Limited Sale of parts 3 .
{iv) Others
UD Trucks Corporation, Royalty 14,049 9,469
Japan Furchases of complete o
knock down kits 2274299 1,469,303
Dividend 7,294 -
Staff provident fund Conlribution made 5,459 4,981
Key managemaent Remuneration and oiher o i
personnel short term benefis 32,636 28,774
Sale of fleel wehicles = a7
PLANT CAPACITY
The Holding Compary

Against the production capacity of 2,500 trucks and buses on single shift basis, the Holding
Company produced 1,922 (2014: 1,246) trucks and buses of UD, suzu, DongFeng and Kamaz.

Actual producton was sufficient to meet the demand.
Against the designed annual production capadity of 5,000 vehicles at car plant, an single shift

basis, the Holding Company has assembled 446 (2014: B03) vehicles of Land Rover. The Holding
Company has also processéd 1842 (2014: 1,115) Truck cabs through paint shop. Due to low
demand of vehicles the plant capacity remained under-utilized.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- eredit rlsk;
= liguiidity risk; and

= rarket risk {including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk).



The board of directors has overall responsibility for the astablishment and overview of Group's
risk management frame work. The board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the
Group's risk management policies,

Credit risk

Credit rick reproasents the financlal loss that would be recugnls_,ed at the reporting date if
counter parties fail completely to perform as contracted / faul to discharge an obligetion /
commitment that it has entered into with the Group.

Credit risk primarily arises from long term loans, long term deposits, trade debis, loans and
zdvances, other recaivables, shart term investment and bank balances. TOmanage exposure 1o
credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking into account
the customer's financial position, past experieénce and other relevant factors. Where
considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from. Credit risk on bank balances and
margin held with banks is limited as the counter parties are banks with reasonably crediting
ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2015 along with comparative is tabulated

i 2015 2014
- Rupees in ' 000 -
Long term loans 6477 4,864
Long term deposits ‘ B, 295
Trade debis 375,973 355,583
Loans and advances 3,440 3,679
Deposits and prepayments 5,410 =
Other receivables 30,749 17,463
short term investment 30,002 38,108
Bank balances 351,723 171,441
810,163 637,438

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk for trade debts at the reporting date by geographic region
Is as follows:

2015 2014

—-= Rupees in 000 -=---
Domestic 375,397 305,279
Export 576 304
The ageing of trade debts at the re porting date is as follows:
Up to 3 months 311,996 122,917
3 to 6months i!,h 112,318
more tham & months 1,668 160,348

375,873 395,583

Based on past experience, consideration of financial positicn, past track records and recoveries,
the management believes that trade debts past due over six months. do not require any
impairment.



{a)

Ligquidity risk

Ligquiclity risk is the risk tnat the Grodp will not be able to meat ity hnandal obligations 3835 they
fall due, The Group's approach (5 to ensure, as far 35 possible, to always have sufficient lguidity
te maet its labilises when due. Prudent liguidity risk management implies. maintaining
sutficient cash and cash equivalent and ensuring the availability of adeguate credit Facilities.
The Group's tréasury department aims at maintaining flesxibility in funding by keeping
cometitted cradit lires available.

Financial llabilities in sccordance with theircontractual maturities are presented below:

Betwesn 5years

Carrying Less than

1ta s and
amount 1 year years akoe
June 30, 2015 [— TR
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance leasa 57,022 11.387 45 B35 -
Long term deposits 8,611 - - 2611
Trade and other payables 581,967 581,067 - -
Acerued mark-up 7,985 7,985 - -
Short term finances 32,269 32259 - -
Running finances under
mark-up arrangements 118,802 118802 - -
Carmying Less than Between1 3 years
amount tyear 105 years and above
June 30, 2014 Rupees i "D —ccmmmm=
Liabilities againsi assels
subject o finance lease 16,662 3,656 13,008 .
Long term deposits 10,611 - - 10611
Trade and other payabies 456,202 458,292 = .
Accrued mark-up 5178 5178 - -
Short term finances 448,861 448 BE1 - .
Running finances under
mark-up arrangamaents 54,380 54,380 * -
991,884 O5R, 367 13,006 10,611
Market risk

Markat risk is the risk that changes In market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, Interest
rates and eguity prices will effect the Group's income or the value of fts holdings of financial
instruments, The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposunes with scceptable parameters, while optimising the retum.

Currency risk

Currency risk |s the risk that fair value of future cash fows of a financial Instrament will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group is exposed 1o currency risk
on import.of raw materials, stores & spares and commission incame denominated in U5, Dollar,
lapanese Yen and Chinese Yuan Renminbi (RME). The Group's exposure to foraign currency risk
at the reporting date is as follows:



(b)

lune 30, 2015 in ‘000

Trade and other payables 322,476 135682 140 a71
Trade debts 576) S (6} s
Met exposure 321,900 135,892 134 an

Rupees Yen W55 RMB
June 30, 2014 Tl 1" 1)
Trade and other payables 427,346 188,049 = 4,113
Trade debts {304) . {3}
Net exposure 227,042 188,049 (3} 4113
The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

Reporting date rate
2015 04

Yen to Rupee 08213 0.9748
U5, 5to Rupee 10170 f 10150 Of 55
RME to Rupees 16.39 15.51

Sensitivity analysis
At June 30, 2015, if Rupee had strengthened by 5% against Yen, Doliar and RMB with all other
variables held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have been higher/ {lower) by
the amount shown below mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain on translation of net
financial liabilities.

2015 2014
Effect on profit forthe year e Rupees in "000 -----
Yen to Rupee 5572 49, 166
U.5. 5to Aupee 681 (15)
EMB to Rupee 386 3,272
6,639 12,423
interest rate risk

interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a Anancial instruments will
fluctuate hecause of changes in marketinterest rates,

Majority of the interest rate risk of the Group arisas from short term borrowings from banks,
short term investment and balances heid with banks. At the reporting date the profile of the
Group's Interest bearing financial instruments is as follows:

015 2014
Financial asset - fixed rate instruments cenee Rupees in 000 -
Short term investment 30,000 38,000
Bank balances 246,917 64,298
276,917 102,298
Financial Liabilitles - variable rate instruments j
Liabilities against assets subject 1o finance lease - 57,022 16,662
Short term finances 32,259 448 BB
Running fAinances under mark-up arrangements 118, 802 54,380
208,083 519,503
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Sensitivity analysls for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financlal assets and lighilities at fair value
through profit or loss, Therefare, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not
affect materially profit for the year.

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A& change of 100 basis point in interest rates at the reporting date would have [decreased] /
increased profit for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumed that all athier
variables, in particular foreign currency rates remaln constant. The analysis is performed on the

same basis for 2014, i

Increase (Decrease)
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate financial liabilities <=« Rupees in ‘000 —-
As at June 30, 2015 2,081 {2,081)
Asg at June 30, 2014 5154 {5,199)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarlly indicative of the eflects on profit for the
year and liabilites of the Group.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows from a financial instrument will Auctuate
due to changes in market prices (other than those arising from Interest rate risk or cumency
risk}, Whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
Instrument or its issuer, or factors alfecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market. At June 30, 2015 / 2014 the Group did not have any financial instruments dependent on
market prices.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asiet could be exchanged, or aliability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in anarm's length transaction.

AL Jume 30, 2015 / 2014 the carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected inthe
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values except for staff loans which
are valued at their original cost less repayments,

CAPITAL RISK MAMNAGEMENT

The Group’s prime objective when managing capital is to saleguard its ability to continue as a
Boing concern so0 that it can continue te provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its
business.

The Group manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order ta maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may ad|ust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders and /
or jssue naw shares, There was nio change to the Group's approach to capital management
during the year.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable
segment.

(@) Allnon-current assets of the Group at June 30, 2015and 2014 are focated in Pakistan.
(b} 99.98% {2014: 98.71%) of the Group's sales relate to customers in Pakistan.

{e} The Group has earned revenue from one (2014: one) customer amounting R 1, 108.040
million { 2014: Rs.633.157 millicn) durlng the year which constituted 19.80% (2014: 24, 17%)
of the total sales:



#

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2015 4

Number of employees as at lune 30,

- Permanent 234 217
= Contractual o0z 231
Average number of employees during the year
- Permanent = 229 226
- Contractual 277 230
-

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO PROVIDENT FUND

The Holding Company operates a recognised provident fund for all its permanent emplovees.
The following information is based on un-audited financial statements of the Holding
Company's Fund for the year ended June 30, 2015;

2015 2014
=== Rupees in ‘000 ---
Size of the Fund - total assets 3177 63,621
Cost of investments made 6R.221 60,050
Fercentage of investments made 83.73% 34.39%
Fair value of investments 78,999 64,641
Break-up of the investments Is as follows:
2015 2014 015 2014
----- Percentage ----— === Rupees in ‘000 ---
Bank deposits 167 174 1219 1,105
Government securities 76.25 78.94 55,796 50,220
National Investment Trust - units 1531 1271 11,206 BIS

Investments cut of Provident Fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of
section 227 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.
NON-ADIUSTING EVENT AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors of the Helding Company in their meeting held on September 18, 2015
have proposed final cash dividend of Rs.4.5(2014: As.2.00) per share, samounting to Rs.202.511
million (2014: Rs.90.005 million), far the year ended lune 30, 2015. The proposed dividend will
be approved in the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Dctaber 22nd, 2015.
These consalidated financlal statements do not reflect the proposed dividend, which will b
accounted for in the consolidated statement of changes in equity as appropriation from
unappropriated profit in year ending June 20, 2016,

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR I155UE

These consolidated financial staterments were authorised for issue on September 16, 2015 by
the Board of Directors of the Holding Company.

CORRESPOMNDING FIGURES

Correspanding figures have been rearranged and reclassified for better présentation wherever
considered necessary, the effect of which |5 not material,

Ahmed Kull Khan Khartak Ch, Sher Mubhammad
Chief Executive Director

Karachi; 16th September 2015



Form of Proxy

I fwe

of being

a member|s) of Ghandhara Nissan Limited and holder of

)
Ordinary Shares as per Registered Felio No_/COC Participant’s 1D and Account No.

hereby appoint

of

or falling him/her of

who s

alzo member of Ghandhara Nissan Limited vide Registered Folio No./CDC Participant™s 1D and
Account No. a5 may/our proxy to vote for me/us and on myfour behalf at the
33" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, the 22™ October 2015

at 10:00 AM, and any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2015.
AFFIX
REVENUE
STAMP
Rs.5/-
Signature
Witness: Witress:
Mame with Mame with
HIC No.: NIC No.:
Address: Address:
IMPORTANT:

1. This form of Prosy duly completed must be deposited at the Company's Registered office Ghandhara House,
10572, Clifton, Karachl not tater than 4B hours before the time of holding the meeting,

2. A Proxy should also be 3 member of the Company.

COC Shareholders and their Proxies must each attach an attested photocopy of their National identity Card
or Passport with this Proxy Form.,








